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MIDDLEBURG FINANGIAL CORPORATION. A NATURAL EVOLUTION.

When Independent Community
Bankshares, Inc. was formed in
1994, we envisioned a multi-bank
holding company comprised of
various and diverse community
banks throughout the region.
However, in responding to the

needs and opportunities of our

L Mlddlebur§
- Financial orporatlon

r. Mldd eburg
- Bank

f.;Tredegar
<@’ Trust Company

/‘.* Gilkison Patterson
‘ Investment Advisors

growing markets, we have evolved
into much more than a bank hold-
ing company.
Today, we operate one of

the most successful community
banks in the nation. Through
The Tredegar Trust Company
and our affiliation with Gilkison
Patterson Investment Advisors,
we have become a manager of
over $1 billion in assets. Our
lending division arranged more
than $100 million in residential
mortgages and financed over
$75 million in consumer and
commercial loans last year. The
Middleburg Bank provides a
variety of securities through its
Investment Services Department.
Many regional businesses rely on
us for a wide range of commercial
services. Over a thousand
customers now bank with us
online through Middleburg’s
@home banking.

In short, we have become a

comprehensive financial services

company with plans to offer
even more financial products in
the very near future. Recognizing:
the evolution of your company,
the Board of Directors has
approved a new name for the
holding company, Middleburg
Financial Corporation, which we
expect to be in place by mid-year
of 2002. Our new name will
more accurately represent what
we have become. Equally impor-
tant, adoption of the Middleburg
name will provide a strong link
to our 78-year heritage of personal
service, financial integrity and

commitment to the region.




Dear Shareholders:

It would be difficult to review the year
without acknowledging September 11.
What happened changed our world.
Changed the way we went about our
daily lives. Changed our vision for the
future. We pulled inward. We returned
to basics. We came back looking for
stability and value. We continue to
offer our thoughts and prayers to every-
one affected by those senseless acts.

Within our company we under-
stood and appreciated the President’s
appeal to get on with our lives, tend
to business and keep America mov-
ing. Simply put, we were in the right
place at the right time. We have taken
advantage of our opportunities and
are able to report to you the end of
the best year in our history.

Net income for the year ending
December 31, 2001 rose to $5.2
million, a 23.4% increase over the
$4.2 million reported for the same
period in 2000. The company earned
$2.93 per diluted share, compared
to $2.41 per diluted share for 2000.
Our profit performance resulted in
a return on average assets of 1.67%
and a return on average equity of

17.55%. These important measures
of profitability compare quite favorably
to our high performance standards.
Our profits were augmented by a
31.6% increase in non-interest income,
one of our key strategic objectives. Fees
generated by mortgage lending activity
played a major role in the increase. Net
interest margin for the year was 5.16%.

Assets reached an all time high of
$354.1 million, an increase of $64.6
million over the preceding year. The
22.3% increase in assets represents the
third year in a row of double-digit
growth. Loans increased 10.6% to
$196.4 million at year-end compared
to $177.6 million at December 31,
2000. We continue to grow our loan
portfolio without compromising our
lending criteria, resulting in non-per-
forming loans of only .04% of total
loans outstanding.

We are fortunate that our princi-
pal base of operations lies in one of
the nation’s most affluent and fastest
growing counties. The region’s rapid
growth helped us achieve a 20%
growth in deposits to $271.7 million.
But our deposit growth would not
have been possible wichout our front
line employees” commitment to con-
sistent quality service. Their efforts
enabled The Middleburg Bank to
increase its market share, solidifying
its leading market position in
Loudoun County, Virginia in 2001 at
16.3%, according to FDIC figures.

The Tredegar Trust Company,
our trust and investment subsidiary,
finished the year with $460 million in
assets under management. Under the
leadership of John Mason Antrim,
Tredegar solidified its relationship with
existing clients, while outperforming
the 2001 equities market in terms of
its return on the client portfolios.

Your company also continued
to benefit from its affiliation with
Gilkison Patterson Investment
Advisors in Alexandria, Virginia.
Assets under management at Gilkis
Patterson exceeded $600 million at
year-end. We expect to complete ot
acquisition of this highly respectec
investment manager in 2002, bring
our combined assets under manage-
ment to over $1 billion.

During the fourth quarter of
2001 the company took advantage
the prevailing favorable rate enviror
ment and issued $10 million in tru
preferred securities. These long-terr
securities will provide cost effective
additional capital to support future
growth without the share dilution as.
ciated with a common equity offerin

We will continue to evolve in tt
years and months ahead into a com
prehensive financial services compa
However, our goal will always be to
deliver outstanding value to our
shareholders, service to our cus-
tomers and opportunity to our
employees. As we continue to raise
the bar for our performance, your
management and staff are ever min
ful of the support and guidance we
have received through the years fros
key constituencies. We plan to con-
tinue to draw on those resources as
we meet the financial needs of one
of the most promising markets in
the nation.

Best regards,

SR
Joseph L. Boling

Chairman of the Board & CEQO




- SELECTED FINANGIAL DATA.

‘ Yeafs Ended Décember 31, ,
2001 , 2000 . - 1999 1998 1997

(In thousands, except ratios and per share amounts)

Income Statement Data:

Interest income = . ‘$‘21,822 | $-19,209 - $ 15,522 $ 13,785 $'>1AZ,685‘

Interest expense = 7814 T 7,041 5,345 5313 . 5,192
Net interest income. ‘ ' ~$ 14,008 $ 12,168 $ 10,177 $ 8,472 C$ 7,493
Provision for loan losses . 300 . 400 - . 420 135 ~ 178
Net interest income after : A C k S ) : L
~provision for loarn losses . $13,708  $711,768 . $ 9,757 $ 8337  $ 7315
Non-interest income - o L 4,827 ©.3,669 2,959 2,187 ‘ 1,240 -
~ Securities gains (losses) S © 384 (204) - (13) . (18) 1)
Non-interest expense \ o 11,947 9555 8,040 6,674 4971
Income before income taxes ‘ $ 6972 $ 5678 "$ . 4,663 $ 3832 .8 3493
Income taxes ' 1,755 . 1,450 1,097 857 ‘ 862
Net income S 8 5217 . 8..4228 0§ 3,566 $ 2,975 ©$ 2,631
Per Share Data.(1): : R T o v ‘
Net Income, Basic ‘ 8299 $2.43 $2.00 $1.65 . 8151
Net Income, Diluted . 2.93 o241 199 o 163 1.51 -
Cash Dividends - =~ = . , 1.00 0.84 © 068 0.75 032
Book value at period end ' o 17.31 - - 15.68 . 12.97 12.85 - 11.96
" Balance Sheet Data: ‘ o ' N L
Assets | © - $354,101 - $289,461 . $243,925  $205,403 $184,860
Loans, net of unearned income - N 196,400 . - 177,598 143,235 121,323 104,227
‘Securities o o , 124,351 ' 81,577 67,739 57,786. 63,696
Deposits ' - 271,731 224,640 203,837 172,680 156,554
Shareholders’ equity _ 30,338 27,271 23,075 22,863 21,686
-Average shares outstanding, Basic (1) 1,746 1,741 1,779 ‘ 1,803 1,741
Average shares outstanding, Diluted (1) 1,783 1,752 1,795 - 1,821 1,741
Performance Ratios: : :
Return on Average Assets 1.67% -+ 1.62% 1.60% 1.54% - 1.52%.
Return on Average Equity ' 17.55% 17.46% 15.48% 13.24% 13.54%
Capital to Assets ’ 8.57% 9.42% 9.49% 11.13% - 11.73%.
Dividend payour - 33.53% 34.57% 34.00% 45.45% 21.85%

Efficiency (2) 60.40% 57.40% 57.90% 58.50% 53.70%

Capital and Liquidity Ratios:
Risk-based capital ratios:

Tier 1 capital 164%  12.7% 14.0% 17.1% 18.8%
Total capital : ' 17.3% 13.6% 14.8% 17.9% 19.7%
Leverage 12.5% 9.7% 10.8% 112% . 11.8%

(1) Restated giving retroactive effect to 100% stock dividend declared in November 1997.
(2) Computed by dividing non-interest expense by the sum of net interest income on a tax equivalent basis
and non-interest income, net of securities gains or losses.
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THRIVING IN A GHANGING ENVIRONMENT.

8uccess as a financial services
company has become more com-
plex due to a rapidly changing
environment. Competition, once
confined primarily to other banks,
has expanded to include a wide
array of companies and industries.
Customers, once requiring only
basic deposits and loans, are
demanding a much broader selec-
tion of products and services, from
basic money management accounts
to highly sophisticated securities
instruments. The financial services
industry, once comprised of
thousands of banks and holding
companies, has consolidated with
an unprecedented momentum,
greatly reducing the number of
financial institutions and creating
virtual cartels in some markets.
For many financial services
companies, simple, basic survival
has been the goal. For others—
those with the abilities to move
quickly, adapt and anticipate
change—the financial services
arena has been fertile ground for
solid growth, expansion of services

and strong financial performances.

Independent Community
Bankshares, Inc. has been able to
not only survive in this challenging
environment, but also to prosper
and deliver value to customers and
shareholders alike. Our success has
not depended on revolutionary
changes or major shifts in direc-
tion. Instead we have relied on a
solid strategic plan that was put
in place several years ago. The
strategic plan set a course for
the company to be pursued
through a thoughtful evolution-
ary process. At the same time,
it was not a static plan, but a
living document that could
adapt to meet unforeseen chal-
lenges and opportunities as

they were encountered.

A FOCUS ON
NON-INTEREST INCOME

Long ago our management
team anticipated the current
pressure on interest rates and
the potential corresponding
reduction in net interest margin
as the company’s primary

source of income. Recognizing

the future need for non-interest
income, we began to build the
infrastructure to deliver an entirel
new segment of profits from mor
gage banking, investment managg
ment and sales, service charges
and fiduciary fees. In 2001, those
plans resulted in significant
contributions to our company’s

performance.

eeeveveey, Red Fox can utilize a wide rar

babitats and is a highly adaptable 5




Mortgage banking income
more than doubled in 2001 to
nearly $1.5 million, as a result of
over $91 million in secondary mar-
ket residential real estate loan pro-
duction. During the year, service
charge income on deposit accounts
increased 23% to $1.5 million, the

result of aggressive growth in

Income Sources.
,([n Thousands)

$15,000

$12,oqo
$9,000:
$6,000
$3,000

$0

BB Net Interest Income
{3 Non-interest Income

deposit accounts. Fiduciary fees,
based on market value of accounts
under administration, declined
along with the various equity mar-
kets during the year. However,
investment fees generated by our

relatively new investment sales

department more than offset the
decline, growing to $485,000. We

expect even stronger growth in
non-interest 1ncome as we explore

other fee for service opportunities




PRESERVING RESOURGES TO REMAIN GOMPETITIVE.

One year’s success does not

insure the next. However, steps can
be taken to provide the resources
required to compete and grow in
future years. That’s why we have
always placed great emphasis on
increasing the quantity and quality
of our assets through industry-leading
profitability and a rigid dedication
to quality of loans. Our emphasis
on building resources was especially
gratifying in 2001.

Like many financial institutions,
we were concerned about the rapid
downward spiral in short-term
rates during the year. The 4.75%
decrease in short-term rates could
have placed a great deal of stress on
our net interest margin, potentially
threatening profitability. However,
we were able to deliver a strong
and stable net interest margin due
to two key factors. One factor was
our management team’s focus on
minimizing the impact of volatile
interest rates on the net interest
margin through strategically sound
asset liability practices. Another
factor was a continuation of our
remarkable growth in low cost
deposits, primarily checking and
money market accounts. This

allowed us to fund the earning

asset growth at a low cost, result-
ing in a gratifying net interest
margin of 5.16% for the year.

Our success in achieving a favor-
able net interest margin combined
with continued growth in fee income
to boost profits for the year to new
highs. Profitability will continue to
provide the fuel to compete in one of

the nation’s fastest growing markets.

THE IMPORTANGE OF
ANTICIPATION

Companies must be quick to react
in today’s markets. But they must
also be able to anticipate changes
and opportunities in order to profit
from them. Our Board of Directors
and management team continue
to look for products, services and
markets, which will present us with
ways to enhance our performance
and deliver services at a profit.
While nothing is certain but
change, we have been able to pre-
dict with some accuracy future
areas of opportunity. T.He'ucpmpa—
ny’s decision to move aggressively
into the Leesburg market serves
as an example of judicious anticipa-
tion of market conditions. Our
first full-service Leesburg branch

opened in 1996 and has already

exceeded $100 million in deposits
Based on the excellent response to
our style of community banking,
we will open a second full-service
branch in Leesburg in late summe
2002. The new branch will house
our new Financial Services Center
offering products and services well
beyond the scope of a typical ban}
branch. In further response to our
growth we will centralize our oper
ations in late spring in a building
in Leesburg.

The bank’s success in Leesburg
mirrors our competitive edge
throughbut Loudoun County, our
primary base of operations. Becau:
Loudoun is one of the fastest grow
ing counties in America, you woul
naturally expect coincident growtt
of a locally based community banl!
However, we have been fortunate
to not simply ride the wave of grow
in the county but to exceed it. Our
growth has outpaced that of the
county for several years, resulting
in share of market gains while com
peting with the local operations
of some of the largest financial
institutions in the U.S. At June
30, 2001 we held the number
one share of market position in

deposits within Loudoun County




according to the FDIC.

We also look to grow outside
of the traditional banking arena.
Through a joint effort with the
Virginia Bankers Association,
we have the opportunity to offer
insurance products to our cus-
tomers in 2002, further enhancing

non-interest income. Wealth man-

agement will continue to be an

area of focus as The Tredegar Trust
Company and Gilkison Patterson
Investment Advisors expand their
client bases and broaden the geog-
raphy of the areas they serve.

As a company with a 78-year
history, we are fortunate to have
survived and prospered through
many changes and events. Our

company is stronger today than

it has ever been. More important,
we are more prepared than ever to
thrive as a regional force in the

financial services industry.

Net Income

$6,000

$5,217

$5,000 —

$4,228

$4,000
$3,000
$2,000

$1,000

$3,566

$0

evos0ece ) Red Fox is a quick, skillful hunter with a

reputation for being cunning.
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-KSB

ANNUAL REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001
Commission file number 0-24159

. INDEPENDENT COMMUNITY BANKSHARES, INC.

(Name of Small Business Issuer in its Charter)

Virginia 54-1696103
(State or Other Jurisdiction (I.R.S. Employer
of Incorporation or Organization) Identification No.)

111 West Washington Street

Middleburg, Virginia 20117
(Address of Principal Executive Offices) (Zip Code)

(703) 777-6327
(Issuer’s Telephone Number, Including Area Code)

Securities registered under Section 12(b) of the Exchange Act:

Name of Each Exchange
Title of Each Class on Which Registered
None n/a

Securities registered under Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act:

Common Stock, par value $5.00 per share
(Title of Class)

Check whether the issuer: (1) filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Exchange Act during the past 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file
such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for past 90 days.

Yes X No_

Check if there is no disclosure of delinquent filers in response to Item 405 of Regulation S-B
contained in this form, and no disclosure will be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in
definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-KSB or
any amendment to this Form 10-KSB. [ ]

The issuer’s gross income for its most recent fiscal year was $27,033,000.

The aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates computed by reference to
the closing sales price of such stock on February 21, 2002 was approximately $49,365,372. (The
exclusion from such amount of the market value of the shares owned by any person shall not be deemed
an admission by the registrant that such person is an affiliate of the registrant.)

The number of outstanding shares of Common Stock as of February 22, 2002 was 1,752,558.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Proxy Statement for the 2002 Annual Meeting of Shareholders — Part 111




TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART 1
Page

ITEM 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS ..o oottt ceee s seerrreteessnsees s s eeneas 3
ITEM 2. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY ..ovviiiriiieiiirrieminriereeisesrrereearsssessessssnesnessnnes 7
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS ..ottt et eeiee s sesinseeesssssnessssessenaseseaes 8
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE

OF SECURITY HOLDERS ..ottt eeseeee ettt e e s e enesavsaessnn 8

PART 11

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED

STOCKHOLDER MATTERS .....ovvieeeeeveeeeeetteeeeevee s veenvviie e eaens 9
ITEM 6. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL

CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS .....ccocoeivveeriiinnen, 9
ITEM 7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ..ottt e snveres e s eeaabreee s 28
ITEM 8. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS

ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE............. renn 28

PART 11

ITEM 9. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, PROMOTERS AND

CONTROL PERSONS; COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION

16(a) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT .....coii oot cceeeieeere e sveeeseens 29
ITEM 10. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION ...ooiiicorteeeieeeteerttie e ssereesessanes s sosrrbaens 29
ITEM 11. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL

OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT ..ottt erveneens 29
ITEM 12. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS......... 29
ITEM 13. EXHIBITS, LIST AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K......oooivveeivreciveeeenees 29




PART 1

ITEM 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

General

Independent Community Bankshares, Inc. (“ICBI” or the “Company”) is a bank holding company
that was incorporated under Virginia law in 1993. The Company conducts its primary operations through
two wholly owned subsidiaries, The Middleburg Bank (the “Bank™) and The Tredegar Trust Company
(“Tredegar™), both of which are chartered under Virginia law.

The Bank has four full service branches and one limited service facility. The Bank has its main
office at 111 West Washington Street, Middleburg, Virginia 20117, and has offices in Purcellville,
Leesburg and Ashburn, Virginia. The Bank opened for business on July 1, 1924.

Tredegar has its main office at 821 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia 23219, and a branch
office in Middleburg, Virginia. Tredegar opened for business in January 1994.

The Bank serves western Loudoun County. Loudoun County is in northwestern Virginia and
included in the Washington-Baltimore Metropolitan statistical area. Loudoun County’s population is
approximately 170,000 with slightly over one-third of the population located in the Company’s markets.
The local economy is driven by service industries requiring a high skill level, self-employed individuals,
the equine industry and the independently wealthy. Tredegar serves primarily the greater Richmond area
including the counties of Henrico, Chesterfield, Hanover, Goochland and Powhatan, as well as Loudoun
County. However, Tredegar does have clients outside of its primary market. Richmond is the state
capital of Virginia, and the greater Richmond area has a population in excess of 800,000 people.

The Company, through its subsidiaries, offers a wide range of banking, fiduciary and investment
management services available to both individuals and small businesses. The banking services include
various types of checking and savings deposit accounts, and the making of business, real estate,
development, mortgage, home equity, automobile and other installment, demand and term loans. Also,
the Bank offers ATMs at all locations, internet banking, travelers’ checks, money orders, safe deposit
rentals, collections, notary public, wire services and other traditional bank services to its customers.
Tredegar provides a variety of investment management and fiduciary services including trust and estate

settlement. Tredegar can also serve as escrow agent, attorney-in-fact, guardian of property or trustee of
an IRA.

The Bank has one wholly owned subsidiary, Middleburg Bank Service Corporation. Middleburg
Bank Service Corporation is a partner in a limited liability company, Bankers Title Shenandoah, LLC,
which sells title insurance to.its members. Middleburg Bank Service Corporation has also invested in
another limited liability company, Virginia Bankers Insurance Center, LLC, which acts as a broker for
insurance sales for its member banks. The Company has a third wholly owned subsidiary, ICBI Capital
Trust I, which is a Delaware Business Trust that the Company formed in connection with the issuance of
$10 million in trust preferred debt in November 2001.

As of December 31, 2001, ICBI had a total of 123 full time equivalent employees. The Company
considers relations with its employees to be excellent. The Company’s employees are not represented by
a collective bargaining unit.



Competition

ICBI faces significant competition for both loans and deposits. Competition for loans comes
from commercial banks, savings and loan associations and savings banks, mortgage banking subsidiaries
of regional commercial banks, subsidiaries of national mortgage bankers, insurance companies, and other
institutional lenders. Its most direct competition for deposits has historically come from savings and loan
associations and savings banks, commercial banks, credit unions and other financial institutions. Based
upon total deposits at June 30, 2001 as reported to the FDIC, ICBI has the largest share of deposits among
the banking organizations operating in Loudoun County, Virginia. ICBI also faces competition for
deposits from short-term money market mutual funds and other corporate and government securities
funds.

Tredegar competes for clients and accounts with banks, other financial institutions and money
managers. Even though many of these institutions have been engaged in the trust or investment
management business for a considerably longer period of time than Tredegar and have significantly
greater resources, Tredegar has grown through its commitment to quality trust services and a local
community approach to business.

Supervision and Regulation

General. As a bank holding company, the Company is subject to regulation under the Bank
Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended, the (“BHCA”) and the examination and reporting
requirements of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the “Federal Reserve Board”).
Under the BHCA, a bank holding company may not directly or indirectly acquire ownership or control of
more than 5% of the voting shares or substantially all of the assets of any bank or merge or consolidate
with another bank holding company without the prior approval of the Federal Reserve Board. The BHCA
also generally limits the activities of a bank holding company to that of banking, managing or controlling
banks, or any other activity that is determined to be so closely related to banking or to managing or
controlling banks that an exception is allowed for those activities.

As a state-chartered commercial bank, the Bank is subject to regulation, supervision and
examination by the Virginia State Corporation Commission’s Bureau of Financial Institutions. It is also
subject to regulation, supervision and examination by the Federal Reserve Board. State and federal law
also governs the activities in which the Bank engages, the investments that it makes and the aggregate
amount of loans that may be granted to one borrower. Various consumer and compliance laws and
- regulations also affect the Bank’s operations.

The earnings of the Company’s subsidiaries, and therefore the earnings of the Company, are
affected by general economic conditions, management policies, changes in state and federal legislation
and actions of various regulatory authorities, including those referred to above. The following description
summarizes the significant federal and state laws to which the Company, the Bank and Tredegar are
subject. To the extent statutory or regulatory provisions or proposals are described, the description is
qualified in its entirety by reference to the particular statutory or regulatory provisions or proposals.

Payment of Dividends. The Company is a legal entity separate and distinct from its banking and
other subsidiaries. The majority of the Company’s revenues are from dividends paid to the Company by
the Bank. The Bank is subject to laws and regulations that limit the amount of dividends it can pay. In
addition, both the Company and the Bank are subject to various regulatory restrictions relating to the
- payment of dividends, including requirements to maintain capital at or above regulatory minimums.
Banking regulators have indicated that banking organizations should generally pay dividends only if the
organization’s net income available to common shareholders over the past year has been sufficient to
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fully fund the dividends and the prospective rate of earnings retention appears consistent with the
organization’s capital needs, asset quality and overall financial condition. The Company does not expect
that any of these laws, regulations or policies will materially affect the ability of the Bank to pay
dividends. During the year ended December 31, 2001, the Bank declared $1.7 million in dividends
payable to the Company. :

Capital. The Federal Reserve Board has issued risk-based and leverage capital guidelines
applicable to banking organizations that it supervises. Under the risk-based capital requirements, the
“Company and the Bank are each generally required to maintain a minimum ratio of total capital to risk-
weighted assets (including certain off-balance sheet activities, such as standby letters of credit) of 8%. At
least half of the total capital must be composed of common equity, retained earnings and qualifying
perpetual preferred stock, less certain intangibles (“Tier 1 capital”). The remainder may consist of certain
subordinated debt, certain hybrid capital instruments, qualifying preferred stock and a limited amount of
the loan loss allowance (“Tier 2 capital,” which, together with Tier 1 capital, composes “total capital”).

In addition, each of the federal banking regulatory agencies has established minimum leverage
capital requirements for banking organizations. Pursuant to these requirements, banking organizations
must maintain a minimum ratio of Tier 1 capital to adjusted average quarterly assets equal to 3% to 5%
subject to federal banking regulatory evaluation of an organization’s overall safety and soundness.

The risk-based capital or standards of the Federal Reserve Board explicitly identify
concentrations of credit risk and the risk arising from non-traditional activities, as well as an institution’s
ability to manage these risks, as important factors to be taken into account by the agency in assessing an
institution’s overall capital adequacy. The capital guidelines also provide that an institution’s exposure to
a decline in the economic value of its capital due to changes in interest rates be considered by the agency
as a factor in evaluating a banking organization’s capital adequacy.

Other Safety and Soundness Regulations. There are a number of obligations and restrictions
imposed on bank holding companies and their depository institution subsidiaries by federal law and
regulatory policy that are designed to reduce potential loss exposure to the depositors of such depository
institutions and to the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) insurance funds in the event that
the depository institution is insolvent or is in danger of becoming insolvent. For example, under
requirements of the Federal Reserve Board with respect to bank holding company operations, a bank
holding company is required to serve as a source of financial strength to its subsidiary depository
institutions and to commit resources to support such institutions in circumstances where it might not do so
otherwise. In addition, the “cross-guarantee” provisions of federal law require insured depository
institutions under common control to reimburse the FDIC for any loss suffered or reasonably anticipated
by the FDIC as a result of the insolvency of commonly controlled insured depository institutions or for
any assistance provided by the FDIC to commonly controlled insured depository institutions in danger of
failure. The FDIC may decline to enforce the cross-guarantee provision if it determines that a waiver is in
the best interests of the deposit insurance funds. The FDIC’s claim for reimbursement under the cross
guarantee provisions is superior to claims of shareholders of the insured depository institution or its
holding company but is subordinate to claims of depositors, secured creditors and nonaffiliated holders of
subordinated debt of the commonly controlled insured depository institutions.

The federal banking agencies also have broad powers under current federal law to take prompt
corrective action to resolve problems of insured depository institutions. The extent of these powers
depends upon whether the institution in question is well capitalized, -adequately capitalized,
undercapitalized, significantly undercapitalized or critically undercapitalized, as defined by the law. As
of December 31, 2001, the Company and the Bank were classified as well capitalized.
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State banking regulators also have broad enforcement powers over the Bank, including the power
to impose fines and other civil and criminal penalties, and to appoint a conservator.

Interstate Banking and Branching. Current federal law authorizes interstate acquisitions of banks
and bank holding companies without geographic limitation. Effective June 1, 1997, a bank headquartered
in one state was authorized to merge with a bank headquartered in another state, as long as neither of the
states had opted out of such interstate merger authority prior to such date. After a bank has established
branches in a state through an interstate merger transaction, the bank may establish and acquire additional
branches at any location in the state where a bank headquartered in that state could have established or
acquired branches under applicable federal or state law.

Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 (the “Act”) was signed
into law on November 12, 1999. The Act covers a broad range of issues, including a repeal of most of the
restrictions on affiliations among depository institutions, securities firms and insurance companies. Most
of the Act’s provisions require the federal banking regulatory agencies and other regulatory bodies to
adopt regulations to implement the Act, and for that reason an assessment of the full impact on the
Company of the Act must await completion of that regulatory process.

The Act repeals sections 20 and 32 of the Glass-Stegall Act, thus permitting unrestricted
affiliations between banks and securities firms. The Act also permits bank holding companies to elect to
become financial holding companies. A financial holding company may engage in or acquire companies
that engage in ‘a broad range of financial services, including securities activities such as underwriting,
dealing, brokerage, investment and merchant banking; and insurance underwriting, sales and brokerage
activities. In order to become a financial holding company, the bank holding company and all of its
affiliated depository institutions must be well-capitalized, well -managed, and have at least a satisfactory
Commumty Reinvestment Act rating.

‘The Act provides that the states continue to have the authority to regulate insurance activities, but
prohibits the states in most instances from preventing or significantly interfering with the ability of a
bank, directly or through an affiliate, to engage in insurance sales, solicitations or cross-marketing
activities. Although the states generally must regulate bank insurance activities in a nondiscriminatory
manner, the states may continue to adopt and enforce rules that specifically regulate bank insurance
activities in certain areas identified in the Act. The Act directs the federal banking regulatory agencies to
adopt insurance consumer protection regulations that apply to sales practices, solicitations, advertising
and disclosures.

The Act adopts a system of functional regulation under which the Federal Reserve Board is
confirmed as the umbrella regulator for financial holding companies, but financial holding company
affiliates are to be principally regulated by functional regulators such as the FDIC for state nonmember
bank affiliates, the Securities and Exchange Commission for securities affiliates and state insurance
regulators for insurance affiliates. The Act repeals the broad exemption of banks from the definitions of
“broker” and “dealer” for purposes of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, but identifies a
set of specific activities, including traditional bank trust and fiduciary activities, in which a bank may
engage without being deemed a “broker”, and a set of activities in which a bank may engage without
being deemed a “dealer”. The Act also makes conforming changes in the definitions of “broker” and
“dealer” for purposes of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, and the Investment Advisers
Act of 1940, as amended.

The Act contains extensive customer privacy protection provisions. Under these provisions, a
financial institution must provide to its customers, at the inception of the customer relationship and

annually thereafter, the institution’s policies and procedures regarding the handling of customers’
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nonpublic personal financial information. The Act provides that, except for certain limited exceptions, an
institution may not provide such personal information to unaffiliated third parties unless the institution
discloses to the customer that such information may be so provided and the customer is given the
opportunity to opt out of such disclosure. An institution may not disclose to a non-affiliated third party,
other than to a consumer reporting agency, customer account numbers or other similar account.identifiers
for marketing purposes. The Act also provides that the states may adopt customer privacy protections
that are more strict than those contained in the Act. The Act also makes a criminal offense, except in
limited circumstances, obtaining or attempting to obtain customer information of a financial nature by
fraudulent or.deceptive means.

Tredegar. Tredegar operates as a trust subsidiary of the Company. It is subject/to supervision
and regulation by the Virginia State Corporation Commission’s Bureau of Financial Institutions and the
Federal Reserve Board.

State and federal regulators have substantial discretion and latitude in the exercise of their
supervisory and regulatory authority over Tredegar, mcludmg the statutory authority to promulgate
regulations affecting the conduct of business and the operations of Tredegar. They also have the ability to
exercise substantial remedial powers with respect to Tredegar in the event that it determines that Tredegar
is not in compliance with applicable laws, orders or regulations governing its operations, is operating in
an unsafe or unsound manner, or is engaging in any irregular practices.

ITEM 2. | DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

The headquarters building of the Company and the Bank, which also serves as a branch office for
Tredegar, was completed in 1981 and is a two-story building of brick construction, with approximately
18,000 square feet of floor space, located at 111 West Washington Street, Middleburg, Virginia 20117.
The office operates nine teller windows, including three drive-up facilities and one stand-alone automatic
teller machine. The Bank owns the headquarters building.

The Purcellville bank branch was purchased in 1994 and is a one-story building with a basement
of brick construction, with approximately 3,000 square feet of floor space, located at 431 East Main
Street, Purcellville, Virginia 20132, The office operates four teller windows, including three drive-up
facilities and one drive-up automatic teller machine. The Bank owns this branch building.

The Leesburg bank branch was completed in 1997 and is a two-story building of brick
_construction, with approximately 6,000 square feet of floor space, located at 102 Catoctin Circle, S.E.,
Leesburg, Virginia 20175. The office operates five teller windows, including three drive-up facilities and
one drive-up automatic teller machine. The Bank also owns this branch building.

v The Leesburg limited service facility, located at 200 North King Street, was leased beginning
April 1999. The leased space consists of 200 square feet with one teller window and a stand-alone
automated teller machine. Transactions in this branch are limited to paying and receiving teller functions.
The initial term of this lease is five years with two additional renewal periods of five years each. The .
annual lease expense associated with this location is $5,400.

The Ashburn bank branch, which is leased, opened in June 1999 and consists of 3,400 rentable
square feet at 20955 Professional Plaza, Suite 100, Ashburn, Virginia 20147. The office is a full service
branch with five teller windows, three drive-up facilities and a drive-up automated teller machine. The
initial term of the lease is 15 years with two five-year renewal options. The annual lease expense
associated with this location is $68,000.




The mortgage banking department of the Bank leases office space at 203 Harrison Street,
Leesburg, Virginia 20175. The space includes 1,822 rentable square feet used primarily for mortgage
banking operations and loan originator office space. The initial term of the lease is for five years with no
renewal options. The annual lease expense associated with this location is $36,000.

The Bank is currently building a 18,000 square-foot office on a 1.5 acre lot next to the Leesburg
bank branch. The office will house the operations, information technology, human resources, mortgage
banking and investment sales departments for the Bank. The Bank expects that construction will be
complete in June 2002 and estimates that the total cost of construction will be approximately $2.5 million.
This cost does not include the land, which the Bank currently owns.

The Bank began construction on a 3,500 square-foot bank branch in Leesburg, Virginia in March
2002. The branch will be the second full service branch office in Leesburg. The total cost of the project
will be approximately $2.1 million, including land. The Bank expects to open this branch in August
2002. '

Tredegar leases its main office at 821 East Main Street in Richmond, Virginia. The lease, which
was entered into in August 2001 when Tredegar moved from its former location, is for a term of 15 years,
with no renewal options. The annual lease expense for the new location will be $165,000. Total lease
expense for 2001, including the new and previous office space, was $76,000. Tredegar closed its branch
office in Williamsburg, Virginia in April 2001. The space included approximately 500 square feet used
primarily for business development and sales. The annual lease expense associated with this location was
$7,500.

All of the Company’s properties are in good operating condition and are adequate for the
Company’s present and anticipated future needs.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are no material pending legal proceedings to which the company is a party or of which the
property of the Company is subject.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered by this report to a
vote of security holders of the Company.




PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS .

Since September 15, 2000, the Company’s Common Stock has traded on the Naédaq SmallCap
. Stock Market under the symbol “ICBX”. The Common Stock traded on the OTC Bulletin Board from
- October 1997 to September 2000. : : : ‘

Market Price and Dividends i

Sales Price ($) Dividends ($)
2000: _ , A e -
ISt quarter . 24.75 .. 20.00 21
20d QUAITET .evvceecceicceeee e - 24.50 18.00 21
3rd QUAITET ... 26.00 20.00 21
4th quarter.........c.cccceevnnnne bererteneneenetie i 26,75 20.00 .21
2001: : o . - ‘
Ist quarter ................ e e, - 33.00 . 21.00 25
. 2nd quarter ......ccoceveveeuenne eeeees rrreeenreree s 3125 . . 27.00 - .25
3rd quarter.........cooo e e+ 36.00 29.00 : 25
Ath quarter ..., e 3590 -..32.50 25

ICBI historically has paid cash dividends on a quarterly basis. The final determination of the
timing, amount and payment of dividends on the Common Stock is at the discretion of ICBI’s Board of
Directors and will depend upon the earnings of ICBI and its subsidiaries, principally its subsidiary bank,
the financial condition of ICBI and other factors, including general economic conditions and applicable

governmental regulations and policies. ICBI or the Bank has paid regular cash dividends for over 200
consecutive quarters.

As of February 1, 2002, ICBI had approximately 950 shareholdéfs of record.

ITEM 6. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion provides information about the ‘major compvo,nents' of the results of
operations and financial condition, liquidity, and capital resources of ICBI. This discussion and analysis

should be read in conjunction with the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. '

Overview

ICBI is headquartered in Middleburg, Virginia and conducts its primary operations through two
wholly owned subsidiaries, the Bank and Tredegar. The Bank is a community bank serving western
Loudoun County, Virginia with four full service branches and one limited service facility. Tredegar is a
trust company headquartered in Richmond, Virginia with a branch office in Middleburg, Virginia.

In 2001, ICBI continued to realize the benefit of high growth rates in both assets and net earnings.
Results for 2001 were also favorably affected by the growth in revenues from the Bank’s mortgage
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banking and investment sales operations. By December 31, 2001, total assets were $354.1 million, an
increase of 22.3%. Total assets at December 31, 2000 were $289.5 million. Loans, net of unearned
income, grew 10.6% from $177.6 million at December 31, 2000 to $196.4 million at December 31, 2001.
Total deposits increased $47.1 million from $224.6 million at December 31, 2000 to $271.7 million at
December 31, 2001. ICBI remains well capitalized with risk-adjusted core capital and total capital ratios
well above the regulatory minimums. Asset quality measures also remained strong throughout the year.

ICBI is not aware of any current recommendations by any regulatory authorities that, if they were
implemented, would have a material effect on the registrant’s liquidity, capital resources or results of
operations.

Results of Operations
Net Income

Net income for 2001 was $5.2 million, an increase of 23.4% over 2000’s net income of $4.2
million. Net income for 2000 was $4.2 million, an increase of 18.6% over 1999’s net income of $3.6
million. For 2001, earnings per diluted share were $2.93 compared to $2.41 and $1.99 for 2000 and
1999, respectively.

Return on average assets (ROA) measures how effectively ICBI employs its assets to produce net
income. ICBI increased its ROA to 1.67% for the year ended December 31, 2001 from 1.62% for the
same period in 2000. A sound net interest margin and a 50.4% increase in non-interest income
contributed to the growth in the ROA. The ROA for 1999 was 1.60%. Return on average equity (ROE),
another measure of earnings performance, indicates the amount of net income earned in relation to the
total equity capital invested. ROE increased to 17.6% for the year ended December 31, 2001. ROE was
17.5% and 15.5% for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
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Average Balances, Income and Expenses, Yields and Rates

Assets:
Securities:
Taxable
Tax-exempt (1) (2)
Total securities
Loans
Taxable
Tax-exempt
Total loans
Federal funds sold

Interest on money market investments

Interest bearing deposits in
other financial institutions
Total earning assets
Less: allowances for credit losses
Total nonearning assets
Total assets

Liabilities (1):
Interest-bearing deposits:
Checking
Regular savings
Money market savings
Time deposits:
$100,000 and over
Under $100,000
Total interest-bearing deposits

Federal Home Loan Bank advances
Securities sold under agreements
to repurchase
Long-term debt
Federal funds purchased
Total interest-bearing liabilities
Non-interest bearing liabilities
Demand deposits
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’

equity
Net interest income

Interest rate spread

Interest expense as a percent of
average earning assets

Net interest margin

Years Ended December 31,

(1) Income and yields are reported on tax equivalent basis assuming a federal tax rate of 34%.

(2) Income and yields include dividends on preferred bonds that are 70% excludable for tax purposes.

11-

2001 2000 1999
Average Income/ Yield/ Average Income/  Yield/ Average Income/ Yield/
Balance Expense Rate Balance Expense Rate Balance Expense Rate
(Dollars in thousands)
$ 52,040 $ 3,364 646% $ 46,838 $§ 3334 7.12% $ 30368 $ 1,937 6.38%
38,748 2,933 7.57% 30,963 2392 7.73% 30,291 2,264 7.47%
$ 90,788 $ 6,297 694% $ 77801 $ 5726 736% $ 60,659 $ 4201 6.93%
$ 194,835 $ 16,297 836% $ 160,658 $ 14,049 8.74% $ 135735 $ 11,677 8.60%
520 46 8.85% 437 41 9.38% 371 26 7.01%
$ 195355 $ 16343 837% $ 161,095 S 14,090 8.75% $ 136,106 $ 11,703 8.60%
3,046 117 3.84% 2,800 170 6.07% 6,030 290 4.81%
1,742 63 3.62% 512 40 7.81% 1,884 98 5.20%
250 9 3.60% 104 4  385% 24 1 4.17%
$ 291,181 $ 22,829 784% $ 242312 $ 20,030 827% § 204703 $ 16,293 7.96%
(1,948) (1,595) (1,223)
23,508 20,875 18,979
$ 312,741 $ 261,592 $ 222459
$ 33978 $ 223 0.66% $ 32461 $ 295 091% $ 29,583 $ 292 0.99%
15,183 278 1.83% 13,148 . 263 200% 11,495 232 2.02%
46,616 1,166 2.50% 42,852 1,162 2.71% 41,701 1,139 2.73%
39,154 2,086 5.33% 25,997 1,453 5.59% 21,965 1,094 4.98%
46,409 2,088 4.50% 44,389 2,151  485% 43,212 2,041 4.72%
$ 181,340 $ 5841 322% $ 158847 $§ 5324 335% $ 147956 $ 4,798 3.24%
7,543 482 6.39% 9,186 584  6.36% 56 3 5.36%
13,292 399 3.00% 12,279 616  5.02% 5,863 253 432%
19,332 1,076 5.57% 8,090 500 6.18% 5,000 281 5.62%
371 16 431% 286 17 594% 179 10 5.59%
$ 221,878 $ 7814 3.52% § 188,688 S 7,041 3.73% $ 159,054 $§ 5345 3.36%
59,289 47,355 39,154
1,854 1,329 1,213
$ 283,021 $ 237,372 $ 199,421
29,720 24220 23,038
$ 312,741 $ 261,592 $ 222459
$ 15,015 § 12,989 $ 10948
4.32% 4.54% 4.60%
2.68% 291% 2.61%
5.16% 5.36% 5.35%



Net Interest Income

. Net interest income represents the principal source of earnings of ICBI. Net interest income is:.
the amount by which interest generated from earning assets exceeds the expense of funding those assets.’
Changes in volume and mix of interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities, as well as their.
respective yields and rates, have a significant impact on the level of net interest income.

Net interest income on a fully tax-equivalent basis was $15.0 million for the year ended.
December 31, 2001. This is an increase of 15.6% over the $13.0 million reported for the same period in.
2000. Net interest income for 2000 increased 18.6% over the $10.9 million reported for 1999.

The increase in net interest income in 2001 resulted mostly from the continued growth in average
earning assets because the 2001 yield on earning assets had decreased marginally from that generated in
2000. The 43 basis point decrease in earning assets yield was offset by a 21 basis point decrease in the
cost of funding, which allowed the net interest margin to remain sound throughout 2001. The average
balance in the securities portfolio increased while the tax-equivalent yield decreased 42 basis points to
6.94%. Nevertheless, the increase in the average balance of the securities portfolio was able to provide
$571,000 in additional interest income on a tax-equivalent basis. The average loan portfolio volume
increased 21.3% during 2001. The increased volume of the loan portfolio provided an additional $2.8
million in interest income. Conversely, the average yield on the loan portfolio decreased 38 basis points,
which resulted in a decrease of approximately $579,000 in interest income provided by the loan portfolio.

In 2001, ICBI experienced respectable growth in its interest bearing checking, savings and money
market accounts. Despite an 8.3% increase in the average balances of these accounts, the decline in
deposit rates during 2001 allowed ICBI to experience a decrease in the respective interest expenses of
~ $53,000. The average balances in certificates of deposit increased 21.6%, while the interest expense
associated with these deposits increased 15.8% or $570,000. The decline in the average rate paid on
certificates of deposit produced a decrease in interest expense of approximately $235,000, while the
increased volume of certificates of deposit increased interest expense by approximately $805,000.

ICBI’s reliance on other funding sources, such as the Federal Home Loan Bank overnight
advances, decreased on average by $1.6 million with a related decrease in interest expense of $102,000.
During 2001, however, ICBI increased on average its long term borrowings from the Federal Home Loan
Bank by $9.5 million. During the fourth quarter of 2001, ICBI issued $10 million in trust preferred
securities, which added $1.7 million in average long term debt to the balance sheet. The interest expense
related to the trust preferred securities is also included in long term debt interest expense and amounted to
approximately $59,000. Total interest expense for 2001 was. $7.8 million, an increase of $773,000
compared to the total interest expense for 2000. ' ‘

The increase in net interest income in 2000 resulted from both the continued growth in the
average earning assets and the increased yield on earning assets.- The similar increase experienced in the
cost of funding during 2000 resulted in a virtually unchanged net interest margin. The average balance in
the securities portfolio increased, while the tax-equivalent yield increased 43 basis points to 7.36%,
providing $1.5 million in additional interest income on a tax-equivalent basis. The asset/liability
strategies employed by management influenced the increase in the investment portfolio yield. The
average loan portfolio volume increased 18.4% during 2000, providing $2.2 million in interest income,
while the average yield on the loan portfolio increased 15 basis points, causing the interest income
provided by the loan portfolio to increase by another $200,000.

In 2000, ICBI experienced marginal growth in its interest bearing checking, savings and money
market accounts. The 6.9% average increase in balances resulted in just $57,000 of additional interest
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expense. The average balances in certificates of deposit increased 8.0%, while the interest expense
associated with these deposits increased $492,000. The increase in the average rate paid on certificates of
deposit as well as the volume of certificates of deposit contributed equally to the increase in expense.
ICBI’s reliance on other funding sources, such as the Federal Home Loan Bank advances, increased on
average by $12.2 million with a related increase in interest expense of $800,000. Total interest expense
for 2000 was $7.0 million, an increase of $1.7 million compared to 1999. During the first quarter of -
2000, ICBI borrowed $1.3 million from a correspondent bank to repurchase 57,785 common shares.

Interest expense related to this debt is included in long term debt interest expense and amounted to
$76,000.

The following table analyzes changes in net interest income attributable to changes in the volume
of interest-bearing assets and liabilities compared to changes in interest rates. The change in interest due
to both volume and rate has been allocated to volume and rate changes in proportion to the relationship of

the absolute dollar amounts of the change in each Nonaccrumg loans are included in the average
outstanding loans. s ,

Volume and Rate Analysis
(Tax Equivalent Basis)
Years Ended December 31,

2001 vs 2000 2000 vs 1999
Increase (Decrease) Due Increase (Decrease) Due
to Changes in: to Changes in:
Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total

(In thousands)
Earning Assets:

Securities:
Taxable $ 181 § (151) $ 30 % 1,151 § 246 $ . 1,397
Tax-exempt 590 49 541 50 78 128
Loans: : '
Taxable 2,825 377 2,248 2,179 - 193 ©2,372
Tax-exempt 7 (2) 5 5 10 15
Federal funds sold 17 (70) (53) (235) 115 (120)
Interest on money market investments 30 (7 23 » (187) 129 (58)
Interest bearing deposits in other
financial institutions 5 - 5 3 - -3
Total earning assets $ 3655 % 856) $ 2,799 $ 2966 $ 771 $ 3,737
Interest-Bearing Liabilities: . . ‘
Interest checking $ 15 $. . 87 $ 72) % 18 $ (15) . 3
Regular savings deposits 33 (18) 15 33 2 - 31
Money market deposits 34 30) 4 31 8) 23
Time deposits
$100,000 and over 697 (64) 633 215 144 359
Under $100,000 108 (17D (63) 10 100 110
Total interest bearing deposits $ 887 $ (370) $ 517 $ 307§ 219 $ 526
Federal Home Loan Bank advances (105) 3 (102) 580 1 581
Securities sold under agree-
ment to repurchase 56 (273) 217) 317 46 363
Long-term debt 620 (44) 576 188 31 219
Federal funds purchased 13 12 1 6 1 7

Total interest bearing liabilities $ 1,445  § 672) $ 773 § 1,398 % 298 % 1,696

Change in net interest income $ 2210 § (184) $ 2,026 $ 1,568 $ 473 % 2,041 -

(1) The change in interest, due to both rate and volume, has been allocated to change due to volume and change due to rate in proportion to the
! relationship of the absolute dollar amounts of the change in each.
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Provision for Loan Losses

ICBI’s loan loss provision during 2001 was $300,000, an decrease of $100,000 from 2000. ICBI
is committed to making loan loss provisions that maintain an allowance that adequately reflects the risk
inherent in the loan portfolio. This commitment is more fully discussed in the “Asset Quality” section
below.

Noninterest Income

Noninterest income has been and will continue to be an important factor for increasing
profitability. Management recognizes this and continues to review and consider areas where non-interest
income can be increased. Noninterest income includes fees generated by the mortgage banking and
investment sales departments of the Bank as well as by Tredegar. Trust fee income decreased 19.8%
during 2001 to $1.3 million. A significant portion of trust fees are based upon a percentage of the market
value of the assets under management, so any decreases in market value of the assets under management
result in a similar decrease in fees. Due to lower mortgage rates and increased refinancings, the mortgage
banking department contributed an additional $840,000 of fees on loans held for sale during 2001.
Growth in transaction deposit accounts also provided additional service charge and fee income. The
service charges and fees associated with deposit accounts increased 23.1% during 2001. During 2001,
ICBI realized $384,000 in net gains as a result of restructuring the investment portfolio in response to the
change in the interest rate environment in 2001. Total noninterest income for 2001 was $5.2 million,
compared to $3.5 million for 2000.

Noninterest income for 2000 increased 17.6% to $3.5 million from $2.9 million in 1999. The
increase is due primarily to the increase in trust fee income, fees on loans held for sale and service
charges on deposit accounts. In 2000, trust fee income increased to $1.6 million, an increase of $446,000
over 1999. The mortgage banking department contributed an additional $82,000 of fees on loans held for
sale during 2000. The service charges and fees associated with deposit accounts lncreased 9.7% during
2000 The increase in these fees was due primarily to deposit growth.

Noninterest Income

Years Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999
(In thousands)
Service charges, commissions and fees $ 1452 $ 1,180 $ 1,076
Trust fee income S 1,279 1,594 1,148 -
Fees on loans held for sale 1,483 643 561
Other operating income 613 : 252 174 -
Noninterest income $ 487 $ 3669 $ 2959
Gains (losses) on securities available for sale, net 384 (204) (13)
Total noninterest income $ 5211 % 3465 § 2946

Noninterest Expenses

Improving operating efficiency is as important to management as enhancing noninterest income.
_Total noninterest expenses increased 25.0% or $2.4 million to $11.9 million in 2001. Salaries and
‘employee benefits increased $1.6 million or 28.2% due to increased commission expense for fee-related
_business and enhancing the internal infrastructure to support a growing organization. Occupancy and
equipment expense increased $74,000 or 6.3% to $1.2 million. Advertising expenses decreased slightly
to $320,000 for 2001. Computer operations expense increased 36.9% to $408,000 during 2001. The
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majority of this increase relates to the cost associated with ICBI’s internet banking products and services.
Other operating expenses increased $655,000 to $2.8 million for 2001 compared to $2.1 million for 2000.
Other operating expenses included $286,000 related to litigation that was settled in the fourth quarter of
2001. Expenses associated with servicing an increased volume of accounts and transactions such as
postage and printing have also impacted other operating expenses in 2001.

Noninterest expenses increased 18.8% or $1.5 million to $9.6 million in 2000. This increase
resulted from both pressures to provide competitive salary and benefit programs and occupancy and

equipment investments to position the Bank for future growth and productivity.

Noninterest Expenses

Years Ended December 31,

2001 2000 - - 1999

, . _ . (In thousands) ‘
Salaries and employee benefits $ 7,080 $ 5600 $ 4,547
Net occupancy and equipment expense 1,246 1,172 1,013
Advertising 320 347 325
Computer operations 408 298 310
Other operating expenses 2,793 2,138 1,845

Total $§ 11947 $ 9555 § 8,040

Income Taxes

Reported income tax expense was $1.8 million for 2001, an increase of $305,000 compared to
$1.5 million for 2000. The effective tax rate for 2001 was 25.2% compared to 25.5% in 2000 and 23.5%
in 1999. The decrease in the effective tax rate for 2001 was influenced by the change in the mix of the
investment securities portfolio as well as the increase in non-interest income. Note 10 of the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements provides a reconciliation between the amount of income tax expense
computed using the federal statutory rate and ICBI’s actual income tax expense. Also included in Note
10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements is information regarding the principal items giving rise to
deferred taxes for the three years ended December 31, 2001.

Market and Interest Rate Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss in a financial instrument arising from adverse changes in market
rates or prices such as interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices and equity prices.
ICBI’s primary market risk exposure is interest rate risk, though it should be noted that the assets under
management by Tredegar are affected by equity price risk. The ongoing monitoring and management of
this risk is an important component of ICBI’s asset/liability management process, which is governed by
policies established by its Board of Directors that are reviewed and approved annually. The Board of
Directors delegates responsibility for carrying out asset/liability management policies to the
Asset/Liability Committee (ALCO) of the Bank. In this capacity, ALCO develops guidelines and
strategies that govern ICBI’s asset/liability management related activities, based upon estimated market
risk sensmv1ty, policy limits and overall market interest rate levels and trends.

Interest rate risk represents the sensitivity of earnings to changes in market interest rates. As
interest rates change, the interest income and expense streams associated with ICBI’s financial
instruments also change, affecting net interest income, the primary component of ICBI’s earnings. ALCO
uses the results of a detailed and dynamic simulation model to quantify the estimated exposure of net
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interest income to sustained interest rate changes. While ALCO routinely monitors simulated net interest
income sensitivity over a rolling two-year horizon, it also employs additional tools to monitor potential
longer-term interest rate risk.

The simulation model captures the impact of changing interest rates on the interest income
received and interest expense paid on all assets and liabilities reflected on ICBI’s balance sheet. The
simulation model is prepared and updated four times during each year. This sensitivity analysis is
compared to ALCO policy limits, which specify a maximum tolerance level for net interest income
exposure over a one-year horizon, assuming no balance sheet growth, given both a 200 basis point (bp)
upward and downward shift in interest rates. A parallel and pro rata shift in rates over a 12-month period
is assumed. The following reflects the range of ICBI’s net interest income sensitivity analysis during the
fiscal years of 2001 and 2000 as compared to the 10% Board-approved policy limit.

2001
Rate Change Estimated Net Interest Income Sensitivity
High - Low Average
+ 200 bp (2.21%) (.32%) (1.32%)
- 200 bp 3.24% 1.57% 2.44%,
2000
Rate Change Estimated Net Interest Income Sensitivity
High Low Average
+200 bp (2.04%) (.19%) (1.21%)
- 200 bp 2.47% .99% 1.75%

During 2001, ICBI was able to test the parameters and assumptions of its simulation model in
light of the 4.75% decrease in short term rates over 11 months. The simulation model proved to be
accurate in its presentation of a company that benefits from falling interest rates. As presented in the
table above, ICBI has had minimal interest rate risks to either falling or rising interest rates over the past
two years. ICBI could expect a negative impact to net interest income of $364,000 if rates rise 200 basis
points over the next 12 months. If rates decline 200 basis points, ICBI could expect a positive impact to
net interest income of $386,000 over the next 12 months.

If interest rates had increased 200 basis points in 2000, then the effect to net interest income of
ICBI could have been on average a decrease of $147,000. If interest rates had decreased 200 basis points
during fiscal year 2000, the effect to net interest income of ICBI could have been on average an increase
of $213,000.

During May 2000, ICBI entered into two interest rate swap agreements to assume variable
market-indexed interest payments in exchange for fixed-rate interest payments. The interest rate swap
was used to offset the cost of offering a premium market rate on a promotional retail certificate of deposit.
ICBI raised $8.5 million in new deposits during this three-day promotion. The terms of the certificate of
deposit and the fixed portion of the interest rate swap are identical. The notional principal amount of
interest rate swaps outstanding was $8.5 million at December 31, 2001. The original term was 24
months. The weighted-average fixed payment rate was 7.0% at December 31, 2001. Variable interest
payments received are based on three-month LIBOR. At December 31, 2001, the weighted average rate
of variable market-indexed interest payment obligation to ICBI was 1.67%. The effect of these
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agreements was to transform the certificates of deposit (fixed rate liabilities) to variable rate certificates of
deposit (liabilities). The net income from these agreements was $250,848 for the year ended December
31,2001. : :

The preceding sensitivity analysis does not represent an ICBI forecast and should not be relied
upon as being indicative of expected operating results. These hypothetical estimates are based upon
numerous assumptions, including the nature and timing of interest rate levels including yield curve shape,
prepayments on loans and securities, deposit decay rates, pricing decisions on loans and deposits,
reinvestment or replacement of asset and liability cashflows. While assumptions are developed based
upon current economic and local market conditions, ICBI cannot make any assurances about the
predictive nature of these assumptions, including how customer preferences or competitor influences
might change.

Also, as market conditions vary fromthose assumed in the sensitivity analysis, actual results will
also differ due to factors such as prepayment and refinancing levels likely deviating from those assumed,
the varying impact of interest rate change, caps or floors on adjustable rate assets, the potential effect of
changing debt service levels on customers with adjustable rate loans, depositor early withdrawals and
product preference changes, and other internal and external variables. Furthermore, the sensitivity
analysis does not reflect actions that ALCO might take in response to or anticipation of changes in
interest rates.

Financial Condition

ICBUs total assets were $354.1 million as of December 31, 2001, up $64.6 million or 22.3% from
the $289.5 million level at December 31, 2000. Securities increased $42.8 million or 52.4% from 2000 to
2001. Loans increased by $18.8 million or 10.6% from 2000 to 2001, while deposits increased $47.1
million or 21.0% during the same period. Borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank increased $6.5
million during 2001. It is anticipated that the borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank will
continue to rise should deposit growth not match asset growth. Total shareholders’ equity at year end
2001 and 2000 was $30.3 million and $27.3 million, respectively.

Loans

ICBI’s loan portfolio is its largest and most profitable component of earning assets, totaling
67.1% of average earning assets in 2001. ICBI continues to emphasize loan portfolio growth and
diversification as a means of increasing earnings while minimizing credit risk. Loans, net of unearned
income, were $196.4 million at December 31, 2001, an increase of 10.6% from December 31, 2000’s total
of $177.6 million. Proactive sales efforts, competitive pricing and the branch network supported the
increase in loans during 2001. Loans increased 24.0% from $143.2 million at December 31, 1999 to
$175.8 million at December 31, 2000. The loan to deposit ratio decreased to 72.3% at December 31,
2001 compared to 79.1% at December 31, 2000 and 70.9% at December 31, 1999,
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Loan Portfolio

December 31,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

(In thousands)

Commercial, financial and agricultural $ 22,993 $ 22,555 $ 19,055 $ 18,880 $ 15,111
Real estate construction 24,174 17,693 12,151 5,436 3,798
Real estate mortgage:
Residential (1-4 family) 80,824 81,545 61,062 55,595 45,231
Home equity lines 8,271 5,973 4,382 3,617 3,165
Non-farm, non-residential (1) 48,074 38,812 36,361 28,643 26,054
Agricultural 163 346 379 1,057 2,140
Consumer installment 11,901 10,674 9,845 8,095 8,728
Total loans $ 196,400 $ 177.598 $ 143,235 $ 121,323 $ 104,227

(1) This category generally consists of commercial and industrial loans where real estate constitutes a source of collateral.

At December 31, 2001, residential real estate (1-4 family) portfolio loans constituted 41.2% of
the total portfolio and decreased $721,000 during the year. Real estate construction loans consist
primarily of pre-sold 1-4 family residential loans along with a marginal amount of commercial
construction loans. Real estate construction loans increased to $24.2 million at December 31, 2001 and
represent 12.3% of the total loan portfolio. ICBI’s one time closing construction/permanent loan product
competes successfully in a high growth market like Loudoun County because ICBI is local and can
respond quickly to inspections and construction draw requests. Non-farm, non-residential loans are
typically owner-occupied commercial buildings. Non-farm, non-residential loans were 24.5% of the total
loan portfolio at December 31, 2001. The branch network has helped to support the loan portfolio
diversification, such as increased commercial real estate loans. Home equity lines and agricultural real
estate loans were 4.2% and 0.1% of total loans, respectively, at December 31, 2001.

ICBI’s commercial, financial and agricultural loan portfolio consists of secured and unsecured
loans to small businesses. At December 31, 2001, these loans comprised 11.7% of the loan portfolio.
This portfolio increased 1.9% in 2001 to $23.0 million. Consumer installment loans primarily consist of
unsecured installment credit and account for 6.1% of the loan portfolio.

Consistent with its focus on providing community-based financial services, ICBI generally does
not extend loans outside its principal market area. ICBI’s market area for its lending services
encompasses Fauquier and Loudoun Counties, where it operates full service branches.

ICBI’s unfunded loan commitments totaled $34.2 million at December 31, 2001 and $26.6
million at December 31, 2000. The increase in the amount of unfunded commitments is attributed in part
to the increase in real estate construction financing as well as customer demand for credit line products,
primarily home equity lines.

At December 31, 2001, ICBI had no concentration of loans in any one industry in excess of 10%

of its total loan portfolio. However, because of the nature of ICBI’s market, loan collateral is
predominantly real estate.
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The following table reflects the maturity distribution of selected loan categories:

Remaining Maturities of Selected Loan Categories

December 31, 2001
Commercial, Real
Financial and Estate
Agricultural Construction
(In thousands)
Within one year $ 11,752 $ 18,569
Variable Rate:
One to five years 219 -
After five years 1,240 -
Total $ 1,459 $ -
Fixed Rate:
One to five years 8,440 5,605
After five years 1,342 -
Total $ 9,782 $ 5,605
Total Maturities $ 22,993 $ 24,174

Asset Quality

ICBI has policies and procedures designed to control credit risk and to maintain the quality of its
loan portfolio. These include underwriting standards for new originations and ongoing monitoring and
reporting of asset quality and adequacy of the reserve for loan losses. Total nonperforming assets, which
consist of nonaccrual loans, restructured loans and foreclosed property, were $79,000 at December 31,
2001. This is a decrease of 24.8% from the December 31, 2000 balance of $105,000. Nonperforming
assets at December 31, 2000 decreased $425,000 from $530,000 at December 31, 1999.

Nonperforming Assets

Loans are placed on nonaccrual status when collection of principal and interest is doubtful,
generally when a loan becomes 90 days past due. There are three negative implications for earnings when
a loan is placed on nonaccrual status. First, all interest accrued but unpaid at the date that the loan is
placed on nonaccrual status is either deducted from interest income or written off as a loss. Second,
accruals of interest are discontinued until it becomes certain that both principal and interest can be repaid.
Finally, there may be actual losses that may require that additional provisions for loan losses be charged
against earnings. For real estate loans, upon foreclosure, the balance of the loan is transferred to “Other
Real Estate Owned” (OREOQ) and carried at the lower of the outstanding loan balance or the fair market
. value of the property based on current appraisals and other current market trends. If a write down of the
OREO property is necessary at the time of foreclosure, the amount is charged-off against the allowance
for loan losses. A review of the recorded property value is performed in conjunction with normal loan
reviews, and if market conditions indicate that the recorded value exceeds the fair market value,
additional write downs of the property value are charged directly to operations.
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Nonperforming Assets.

December 31,
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(In thousands)
Nonaccrual loans . ) 79 3 105 % 530 % 409 3 243
Restructured {oans - - - - -
Foreclosed property - - - 200 -
Total nonperforming assets $ 79 3 105 § 530 % 609 $ 243
Allowance for loan losses : : :
to period end loans 1.05% 1.02% 1.01% 0.88% 0.93%"
Allowance for loan losses
to nonperforming assets 2608% 1718% 274% 175% 401% -
Nonperforming assets to .
period end loans 0.04% 0.06% 0.37% 0.50% 0.23% . -
Net charge offs to ‘ .
average loans 0.02% 0.03% 0.02% 0.04% 0.09% .

During 2001 and 2000, approximateiy $700 and $14,000, respectively, in additional interest
income would have been recorded if ICBI’s nonaccrual loans had been current and in accordance with
their original terms. '

At December 31, 2001, the Company had no potential problem loans.

The allowance for loan losses was 2,608% of nonperforming loans at December 31, 2001. At
December 31, 2000 and 1999 the allowance for loan losses was 1,718% and 274% of nonperforming
loans. Management evaluates nonperformmg loans relative -to their collateral value and makes
appropnate reductions in the carrying value of those loans based on that review. o

Allowance For Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is an estimate of the amount that will be adequate to provide for
potential future losses in ICBI’s loan portfolio. Management’s methodology in evaluating the adequacy
of the allowance for loan losses considers potential specific losses, past foan loss experience, as well as
the volume, growth and composition of the loan portfolio. General economic trends as well as any
conditions affecting individual borrowers may also affect the level of loan losses. The allowance is
periodically examined by bank regulators for adequacy. Examiners take into account factors such as the
methodology used to calculate the allowance and the size of the allowance in comparison to peer financial
institutions.

ICBI’s Loan Committee and Board of Directors review problem loans monthly, including their
effect on the allowance for loan losses. In management’s opinion, the allowance for loan losses is
adequate to absorb the current estimated risk of loss in the loan portfolio. ICBI’s management
continually evaluates the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses, and changes in the provision are
based on the analyzed inherent risk of the loan portfolio.
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The following table depicts the transactions, in summary form, that occurred to the allowance for

loan losses in each year presented:

Balance, beginning of period
Loans charged off:
Commercial, financial, and agricultural
Real estate construction
Real estate mortgage
Consumer installment
Total loans charged off
Recoveries:
Commercial, financial, and agricultural
Real estate construction
Real estate mortgage
Consumer installment
Total recoveries
Net charge offs
Provision for loan losses
Balance, end of period

Ratio of allowance for loan losses
to loans outstanding at end of period

Ratio of net charge offs to average
loans outstanding during period

Allowance for Loan Losses

December 31,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
: (In thousands) 7
$ 1,804 $ 1,453 $ 1,064 $ 974 884
- 61 26 8 42
48 - 29 - -
35 35 96 77 86
$ 83 $§ 96 § 151 § 8 128
$ - $ 6 $ 7 $ 1 12
- - 79 6 7
39 41 34 33 21
§ 39 $ 4 $ 120 $ 40 40
44 49 31 45 88
300 400 420 135 178
$ 2,060 $ 1,804 $ 1,453 $ 1,064 974
1.05% 1.02% 1.01% 0.88% 0.93%
0.02% 0.03% 0.02% 0.04% 0.09%

The allowance for loan losses was $2.1 million at December 31, 2001, an increase of $256,000
from $1.8 million at December 31, 2000.. The allowance was $1.5 million at December 31, 1999, In
2001, ICBI’s net charge-offs decreased $5,000 from the previous year’s net charge-offs of $49,000. Net
charge-offs as a percentage of average loans were 0.02% and 0.03% for 2001 and 2000 respectively. The
provision for loan losses was $300,000 for 2001 and $400,000 for 2000.
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- The followmg table shows the balance and percentage of the ICBI s allowance for loan losses
a]located to each maJor category of loan:

Allocation of Allowance for Loan Losses

Commercial, Financial, Real Estate Real Estate
Agricultural Construction Mortgage Consumer
Allowance Percentof Allowance Percent of Allowance Percentof  Allowance Percent of
for Loan in for Loan in for Loan in for “Loan in
Loan Category to Loan Category to Loan Category 16~ Loan  Categdry to
Losses  Total Loans  Losses Total Loans Losses  Total Loans Losses  Total Loans
(Dollars in thousands)
December 31, . : v ‘
2001 . . $ 634 11.71% $ 750 . 12.31% $ 374 69.92% $ 302 6.06%
2000 $ 645 12.70% $ 500 9.96% $ 310 71.33% $ 349 6.01%
1999 $ 580 13.30% $ 350 8.48% $ 178 71.34% $ 345 6.82%
1998 $ 442 15.56% $ 100 4.48% $ 144 73.28% $ 378 6.43%
1997 $ 362 14.50% $ 107 3.64% $ 159 73.49% $ 346 8.37%

ICBI has allocated the allowance according to the amount deemed reasonably necessary to
provide for.the possibility of losses being incurred within each of the above categories of loans. The
allocation of the allowance as shown in the table above should not be interpreted as an indication that loan
losses in future years will occur in the same proportions that they may have in prior years or that the
allocation indicates future loan loss trends. Additionally, the proportion allocated to each loan category is
not the total amount that may be available for the future losses that could occur within such categories
since the total allowance is a general allowance applicable to the total portfolio.

Securities

ICBI manages its investment securities portfolio consistent with established policies that include
guidelines for earnings, rate sensitivity, liquidity and pledging needs. ICBI holds bonds issued from the
Commonwealth of Virginia and its political subdivisions with an aggregate book value and market value
of $2.4 million at December 31, 2001. The aggregate holdings of these bonds exceeds 8.0% of ICBI’s
shareholders’ equity.

ICBI accounts for securities under F manc1al Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement No.
115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.” . This standard requires
classification of investments into three categories, “held to maturity” (HTM), “available for sale” (AFS),
or “trading,” as further defined in Note 1 to the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements. ICBI
does not maintain a trading account and has cla551ﬁed no securities in this category. HTM securities are
required to be carried on the financial statements at amortized cost. AFS securities are carried on the
financial statements at fair value. The unrealized gains or losses, net of deferred income taxes, are
reflected in shareholders’ equity. The HTM classification places restrictions on ICBI’s ability to sell
securities or to transfer securities into the AFS classification. Since ICBI desires the flexibility to respond
to changing balance sheet needs through investment portfolio management, it has chosen to classify only
a small portion of its portfolio in this category. At December 31, 2001, 4.5% of the portfolio was
classified as HTM.

FASB Statement No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”,
requires companies to record derivatives on the balance sheet as assets and liabilities, measured at fair
market value. Gains or losses resulting from changes in the values of those derivatives would be
accounted for depending on the use of the derivative and whether it qualifies for hedge accounting.
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However thlS statement also allowed upon adoptlon a one-time re- allocatxon of securities from HTM to
AFS without penalty to the company. In December 1999, ICBI adopted FASB Statement No. 133 and
elected to transfer certain municipal securities with a book value and market value of $3.1 million from
the HTM classification to the AFS classification.

ICBI holds in its loan and securities portfolios investments that adjust or float according to
changes in “prime” lending rate. These holdings are not considered speculative but mstead necessary for
good. asset/llablhty management.

The carrying value of the securities portfolio was $124.4 million at December 31, 2001, an
increase of $42.8 million or 52.4% from the carrying value of $81.6 million at December 31, 2000. The
market value of the AFS securities at December 31, 2001 was $118.8 million. The unrealized loss on the
AFS securities was $1.3 million and offset slightly by an unrealized gain of $920,000 at December 31,
2001. The net market value loss at December 31, 2001 is reflective of the recent increase in market
interest rates. The unrealized gain on the AFS securities was $609,000 at December 31, 2000.

Investment Securities Portfolio
The carrying value of securities held to maturity at the dates indicated were as follows: ..

December 31,
2001 2000 1999
(In thousands)

U.S. Government securities ) ) - $ 250 $ 250
State and political subdivision obligations 5,484 6,657 7,433
Mortgage-backed securities 61 93 112

$ 5545 § 7,000 $ 7795

The carrying value of securities available for sale at the dates indicated were as follows:

December 31,

2001 2000 1999
o (In thousands)
* . U.S. Government securities =~~~ - - - 8 267 $ 3,072 $ 4824
State and political subdivision obligations = . ; 33,220 27,961 22,261
Mortgage-backed securities L : 63,746 34,043 26,789

Other securities 21,573 9,501 6,070
’ ’ $ 118806 $ 74,577 $ 59944 -
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The following table indicates the increased return experienced by ICBI by lengthening the
maturity of the investment securities portfolio. Securities with maturities greater than five years total
$79.3 million and have an average yield greater -than 7.0%. The securities portfolio represents
approximately 31.2% of the earning assets of ICBI. For that reason, it is managed primarily to provide
superior returns without sacrificing interest rate, market and credit risk. Secondarily through the
asset/liability process, ICBI considers the securities portfolio as a liquidity source in the event that
funding is needed quickly within a 30-day period of time.

Maturity Distribution and Yields of Investment Securities
December 31, 2001
Taxable-Equivalent Basis

Due in 1 year Due after 1 year Due after 5 years  Due after 10 years
or less through 5 years through 10 years and Equities Total
Amount _ Yield Amount __ Yield Amount- Yield Amount _ Yield Amount  Yield
(Dollars in thousands)

Securities held for investment:

Mortgage backed securities  $ 16 575% $ 27 570% $ 8 601% $ 10 7.48% $ 61  6.04%
Total taxable $ 16 575% $ 27 570% $ 8 601% $ 10 748% $ 61  6.04%
Tax-exempt securities (1) 590 7.49% 3,194 7.63% 1,700 7.81% - - 5,484  7.67%
Total $ 606 745% $ 3,221 762% S 1,708 7.80% $ 10 748% $ 5,545 7.65%

Securities available for sale (2):
U.S. Government securities  $

.- s
Mortgage backed securities 6,991  6.19%

- - $ 267 754% $ - - $ 267 7.54%
19733 6.13% 23,131 5.87% 13,891  6.02% 63,746  6.02%

Other 102 7.23% 11,666  5.56% 302 7.14% 6,482  7.64% 18,552  6.32%
Corporate preferred - - - - - - 2,185  7.12% 2,185 7.12%
Total taxable $ 7093 575% $31,399 6.19% $23,700 601% $ 22,558 7.29% $ 84,750 6.12%
Tax-exempt securities (1) - - 622 7.78% 10,317 7.65% 20,983  7.70% 31,922 7.69%
Total $ 7,093 575% $32,021 6.22% $34017 651% $ 43,541 7.49% $ 116,672 6.55%
Total securities $ 7,699 594% $35242 642% $35725 7.01% $ 43,551 7.15% $ 122217 6.60%

(1) Yields on tax-exempt securities have been computed on a tax-equivalent basis.
(2) Amounts exclude Federal Reserve Stock of $134,400 and Federal Home Loan Bank Stock of $2,000,000.

Other Earning Assets

ICBI’s average investment in federal funds sold and money market investments in 2001 were
$3.0 million and $1.7 million, increases of $246,000 and $1.2 million, respectively, over the 2000
amounts. Average investments in federal funds sold and money market investments in 2000 were $2.8
million and $512,000, respectively. Fluctuations in federal funds sold and money market investments
reflect excess deposit growth over loan growth as well as management’s goal to maximize asset yields
while maintaining proper asset/liability structure.

Deposits

Deposits .continue to be an important funding source and primary supply of ICBI’s growth.
ICBI’s strategy has been to increase its core deposits at the same time that it is controlling its cost of
funds. The maturation of the branch network, as well as increased advertising campaigns, have
contributed to the significant growth in deposits over the last several years. By monitoring interest rates
within the local market and that of alternative funding sources, ICBI is able to price the deposits
effectively to develop a core base of deposits in each branch.
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The following table is a summary of average deposits and average rates paid on those deposits:
Average Deposits and Rates Paid
. ; . . December 31, . )
e . . 2001 , 2000 1999

Amount Rate Amount . Rate Amount ~ Rate
' {Dollars in thousands)

Noninterest-bearing deposits $:59280:" . - - § 47355 ' - $ 39,154 -
Interest-bearing accounts: s g
Interest checking 33,978 .., 0.66% . 32,461 0.91% 29,583 0.95%
Regular savings 15,183 1.83% 13,148 2.00% 11,495 2.02%
Money market accounts 46,616 2.50% 42,852 2.711% 41,701 2.73%
Time deposits: ' '
- $100,000 and over 39,154 5.33% - 25,997 5.59% 21,965 4.98%
Under $100,000 - 46,409 450% . 44,389 4.85% 43,212 4.72%
Total interest-bearing deposits 181,340 3.22% 158,847 3.35% 147,956 3.24%
Total T $ 240,629 $ 206,202 ' $ 187,110

 Average total deposits increased 16.7% during 2001, 10.3% during 2000 and 15.8% during 1999
During 2001, the average balance of non-interest bearing dep051ts grew 25.2%. The average balance i in
interest checking and money market accounts grew 4. 7% and 8.8%, respectrvely, during 2001.. '

ICBI will continue to fund assets primarily with deposits and will focus on core deposit growth as
" the primary source of liquidity and stability. ICBI offers individuals and small to medium-sized
businesses a variety of deposit accounts, including demand and interest checking, money market, savings
and time deposit accounts. ICBI neither purchases brokered deposits nor solicits deposits from sources
- outside its primary market area.

The following table is a summary of the maturity distribution of certificates of deposrt equal toor
greater than $100,000 as of December 31, 2001: :

Maturities of Certificates of Deposit of $100,000 and Greater

Within Three to Six to Over Percent

Three Six Twelve. One ~of Total
Months Months Months Year Total Deposits .

(Dollars in thousands)

At December 31,2001 & 14949 § 12,828 § 11,659 $ 6243 . 45,679 . 16.8%:

Capital Resources and Dividends

ICBI has an ongoing strategic objective of maintaining a capital base that supports the pursuit of
profitable business opportunities, provides resources to absorb risks inherent in its activities and meets or
exceeds all regulatory requirements. S .

The Federal Reserve Board has . estabhshed minimum regulatory caprtal standards for bank

holding companies and state member. banks. The regulatory capital standards categorize assets and off-
balance sheet items into four categories that weigh balance sheet.assets according to risk, requiring more
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capital for holding higher risk assets. The minimum ratio of qualifying total capital to risk-weighted
assets is 8.0%, of which at least 4.0% must be Tier 1 capital, composed of common equity and retained
earnings. ICBI had a ratio of risk-weighted assets to total capital of 17.3% at December 31, 2001,
compared to 13.6% at December 31, 2000. The ratio of risk-weighted assets to Tier 1 capital was 16.4%
and 12.7% at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Both ratios exceed the minimum capital
requirements adopted by the federal banking regulatory agencies.

Analysis of Capital
December 31,

2001 2000
(In thousands)

Tier 1 Capital:

Commeon stock $ 8761 $ 8,696
Capital surplus 741 556
Retained earnings 21,084 17,616
Trust preferred debt 9,770 -
Goodwill (1,272) (1,353)
Total Tier 1 capital $ 39,084 § 25,515
Tier 2 Capital:
Trust preferred debt $ 230 % -
Allowance for loan losses 2,060 1,804
Total Tier 2 capital $ 2,290 % 1,804
Total risk-based capital $ 41374 % 27.319
Risk weighted assets $ 238,605 § 201,096
CAPITAL RATIOS:
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio 16.4% 12.7%
Total risk-based capital ratio 17.3% 13.6%
Tier 1 capital to average total assets 12.5% 9.7%

ICBI’s core equity to asset ratio decreased to 8.6% at December 31, 2001, compared to 9.4% at
December 31, 2000. The equity to asset ratio for December 31, 1999 was 9.5%. Several years of high
asset growth rates have outpaced the earnings growth rate and caused the core equity to asset ratio to
decline since 1999.

The primary source of funds for dividends paid by ICBI to its shareholders is the dividends
received from its subsidiaries. Federal regulatory agencies impose certain restrictions on the payment of
dividends and the transfer of assets from the banking subsidiaries to the holding company. Historically,
these restrictions have not had an adverse impact on ICBI’s dividend policy, and it is not anticipated that
they will in the future.

Liquidity

Liquidity represents an institution’s ability to meet present and future financial obligations
through either the sale or maturity of existing assets or the acquisition of additional funds through liability
management. Liquid assets include cash, interest-bearing deposits with banks, federal funds sold, short-
term investments, securities classified as available for sale as well as loans and securities maturing within
one year. As a result of ICBI’s management of liquid assets and the ability to generate liquidity through
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liability funding, management believes ICBI maintains overall liquidity sufficient to satisfy its depositors’
requirements and meet its customers’ credit needs.

ICBI also maintains additional sources of liquidity through a variety of borrowing arrangements.
The Bank maintains federal funds lines with large regional and money-center banking institutions. These
available lines total in excess of $5 million, of which none were outstanding at December 31, 2001.
Federal funds purchased during 2001 averaged $371,000 compared to an average of $286,000 during
2000. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Bank had $12.0 million and $14.3 million, respectively, of
outstanding borrowings pursuant to securities sold under agreement to repurchase transactions (Repo
Accounts), with maturities of one day. The Repo Accounts are long-term commercial checking accounts
with average balances that typically exceed $500,000.

The Bank has a credit line in the amount of $56.5 million at the Federal Home Loan Bank of
Atlanta. This line may be utilized for short and/or long-term borrowing. The Bank has utilized the credit
line for overnight funding throughout 2001 with an average balance of $7.5 million.

At December 31, 2001, cash, interest-bearing deposits with financial institutions, federal funds
sold, short-term investments, securities available for sale, loans and securities maturing within one year
were 49.4% of total deposits and liabilities.

Forward-Looking Statements

Certain information contained in this discussion may include “forward-looking statements”
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. These forward-looking statements are generally identified
by phrases such as “the Company expects,” “the Company believes” or words of similar import. Such
forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks including, but not limited to, changes in
general economic and business conditions, interest rate fluctuations, competition within and from outside
the banking industry, new products and services in the banking industry, risk inherent in making loans
such as repayment risks and fluctuating collateral values, problems with technology utilized by the
Company, changing trends in customer profiles and changes in laws and regulations applicable to the
Company. Although the Company believes that its expectations with respect to the forward-looking
statements are based upon reliable assumptions within the bounds of its knowledge of its business and
operations, there can be no assurance that actual results, performance or achievements of the Company
will not differ materially from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by
such forward-looking statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued two statements — SFAS No. 141,
Business Combinations, and SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets — that will potentially
impact the accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets. Statement 141 eliminates the pooling
method of accounting for business combinations and requires that intangible assets that meet certain
criteria be reported separately from goodwill. The Statement also requires negative goodwill arising from
a business combination to be recorded as an extraordinary gain. Statement 142 eliminates the
amortization of goodwill and other intangibles that are determined to have an indefinite life. = The
Statement requires, at a minimum, annual impairment tests for goodwill and other intangible assets that
are determined to have an indefinite life.

Upon adoption of these Statements, an organization is required to re-evaluate goodwill and other
intangible assets that arose from business combinations entered into before July 1, 2001. If the recorded
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other intangibles assets do not meet the criteria for recognition, they should be classified as goodwill.
Similarly, if there are other intangible assets that meet the criteria for recognition but were not separately
recorded from goodwill, they should be reclassified from goodwill. An organization also must reassess
the useful lives of intangible assets and adjust the remaining amortization periods accordingly. Any
negative goodwill must be written-off.

The standards generally are required to be implemented by the Company for its financial
statements for its 2002 fiscal year. The adoptlon of these standards will not have a matenal 1mpact on the
Company’s financial statements. ‘ : '

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 143, Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations. This Statement addresses. financial accounting and reporting for
obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and associated retirement costs. It
requires that the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation be recognized in the period in
which it is incurred and the associated asset retirement costs be capitalized as part of the carrying amount
of the long-lived asset. - This Statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2002. The Statement is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s
financial statements.

In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 144, Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. The Statement addresses financial accounting and
reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets. It also establishes a single accounting
model for long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale, which includes long-lived assets that are part of a
discontinued operation. This Statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and
interim periods beginning after December 15, 2001. The Statement is not: expected to have a material
effect on the Company’s financial statements.

ITEM 7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

-The following financial statements are filed as a part of this report following Item 13 below:

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2001 and 2000

Consolidated Statements of Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity for the Years Ended December 31,
2001, 2000, and 1999

Consolidated Statements of Cash Fiows for the Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ITEM 8. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

There were no changes in or disagreements with accountants on accounting and financial
disclosure during the last two fiscal years.
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PART III

ITEM 9. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, PROMOTERS AND CONTROL PERSONS;
COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 16(a) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT

Pursuant to General Instruction E(3) of Form 10-KSB, the information contained under the
headings “Election of Directors,” “Executive Officers Who Are Not Directors” and “Section 16(a)
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2002 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 10. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Pursuant to General Instruction E(3) of Form 10-KSB, the information contained under the
headings “Director Compensation,” “Executive Compensation,” “Stock Options,” and “Employment

Agreements” in the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2002 Annual Meeting of Shareholders is
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 11. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to General Instruction E(3) of Form 10-KSB, the information contained undef the
headings “Security Ownership of Management” and “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners”

in the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2002 Annual Meeting of Shareholders is incorporated herein
by reference. : -

ITEM 12. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to General Instruction E(3) of Form 10-KSB, the information contained under the
heading “Transactions with Management” in the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2002 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. EXHIBITS, LIST AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(a)  Exhibits.

3.1 Articles of Incorporation of the Company (restated in electronic format), attached
as Exhibit 3.1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4, Registration No. 333-
24523, filed with the Commission on April 4, 1997 (the “Form S-47),
incorporated herein by reference.

3.2 Bylaws of the Company, attached as Exhibit 3.2 to the Form S-4, 1ncorporated
herein by reference

10.1  Employment Agreement, dated as of January 1, 1998, between the Company and
Joseph L. Boling, attached as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-KSB for the year ended December 31, 1998, incorporated herein by
reference.
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10.2  Independent Community Bankshares, Inc. 1997 Stock Option Plan, as amended,
attached as Exhibit 4.3 to the Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration
No. 333-93447, filed with the Commission on December 22, 1999, incorporated
herein by reference.

103  Agreement and Plan of Reorganization dated as of August 9, 1999, between
Gilkison Patterson Investment Advisors, Inc. (“GPIA”), the Company and
Tredegar, attached as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-QSB for the period ended September 30, 1999 (the “Form 10-QSB”),
incorporated herein by reference.

10.4  Shareholder Agreement dated as of August 9, 1999, between Robert C. Gilkison,
James H. Patterson, the Company and GPIA, attached as Exhibit 10.2 to the
Form 10-QSB, incorporated herein by reference.

10.5  Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of August 9, 1999, between Robert C.
Gilkison, James H. Patterson and the Company, attached as Exhibit 10.3 to the

. Form 10-QSB, incorporated herein by reference.
21 Subsidiaries of the Company.
23 Consent of Yount, Hyde & Barbour, P.C.
(b) Reports on Form 8-K.

No reports on Form 8-K were filed by the Company during the last quarter of the
period covered by this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Yount, Hyde & Barbour, P.C.

Certified Public Accountants
and Consultants .

To the Board of Directors
Independent Community Bankshares, Inc.
Middleburg, Virginia

P

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Independent Community
Bankshares, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated
staternents of income, changes in shareholders' equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Independent Community Bankshares, Inc. and subsidiaries as
of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years
ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States of America.
, W ¢ Bunbour, FC.

Wainchester, Virginia
January 15, 2002

50 S. Cameron 5t.
P.O. Box 2560
Winchester, VA 22604 Offices located in: Winchester, Middleburg, Leesburg, and Culpeper, Virginia
(540) 662-3417 Member: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants / Virginia Society of Certified Public Accountants




INDEPENDENT COMMUNITY BANKSHARES, INC.

Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2001 and 2000
(In Thousands, Except for Share Data)

Assets 2001 2000

Cash and due from banks $ 10053 § = 7352
Interest-bearing deposits in banks ' ' 200 79
Temporary investments: '

Federal funds sold 925 - 8,600

Other money market investments o 1,797 1,116
Securities (fair value: 2001, $124,522 ; 2000, $81,718) 124,351 81,577
Loans held for sale 16,652 2,131
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $2,060 in 2001 '

“and $1,804 in 2000- 194,340 175,794
Bank premises and equipment, net - 8,069 6,349
Accrued interest receivable and other assets 7,714 6.463

Total assets ‘ L $ 354,101 §$. 289461

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

Liabilities

Deposits: '
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits $ 68,771 § 56,980
Savings and interest-bearing demand deposits 111,148 89,425
Time deposits - 91.812 78235
Total deposits $ 271,731 §$ 224,640
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 12,011 14,321
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 7,000 S -
Long-term debt 20,805 21,300
Trust preferred capital notes : - 10,000 --
Accrued interest and other liabilities 2,216 1,929
Commitments and contingent liabilities - - --
Total liabilities $ 323,763 § 262,190

Shareholders' Equity
Common stock, par value $5 per share, authorized
10,000,000 shares; issued 2001, 1,752,258 shares;

issued 2000, 1,739,247 shares $ 8,761 $ 8,696
Capital surplus : 741 556
Retained earnings 21,084 - 17,616
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) - (248) 403

Total shareholders' equity $ 30338 § 27.271
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 354,101 $ 289,461

See Notes to' Consolidated Financial Statements.




INDEPENDENT COMMUNITY BANKSHARES, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Income
Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999
(In Thousands, Except for Per Share Data)

Interest and Dividend Income
Interest and fees on loans
Interest on investment securities:
Taxable interest income .
Interest income exempt from federal income taxes
Interest and dividends on securities available for sale:
Taxable interest income
Interest income exempt from federal income taxes
Dividends
Interest on deposits in banks
Interest on federal funds sold
Interest on other money market investments
Total interest and dividend income

Intérest Expense
Interest on deposits
Interest on securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Interest on Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings
Interest on long-term debt
Total interest expense

Net interest income
Provision for loan losses

Net interest income after provision
for loan losses

Noninterest Income
Service charges, commissions and fees
Trust fee income
Fees on loans held for sale
Gains (losses) on securities available for sale, net
Other
Total noninterest income

Noninterest Expenses
Salaries and employees' benefits
Net occupancy and equipment expense
Advertising
Computer operations
Other operating expenses
Total noninterest expenses

Income before income taxes
Income tax expense
Net income
Earnings per Share, basic
Earnings per Share, diluted

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

—————————————

2001 2000 1999
$ 16,327 $ 14,076 % 11,694
19 25 36
297 354 536
3,102 3,055 1,731
1,607 1,167 893
281 318 243
9 4 o
117 170 290
63 40 98
$ 21,822 § 19209 § 15,522
$ 5,841 § 5324 § 4,798
415 633 263
482 584 3
1,076 500 - 281
$ 7.814 § 7.041 § 5.345
$ 14,008 $ 12,168 § 10,177
300 400 420
$ 13,708 $ 11768 § 9.757
$ 1,452 §- 1,180 § 1,076
1,279 1,594 1,148
1,483 643 561
384 (204) (13)
613 252 174
$ 5211 8§ 3465 $ 2.946
$ 7,180 $ 5,600 $ 4,547
1,246 1,172 1,013
320 347 325
408 298 310
2.793 2.138 1,845
$ 11,947 $ 9.555 § 8.040
$ 6,972 § 5,678 % 4,663
1,755 1,450 1,097
$ 5217 $ 4228 $ 3,566
299 § 243 § 2.00
$ 293 § 241 § 1.99




INDEPENDENT COMMUNITY BANKSHARES, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in: Shareholders’ Equity
Years Ended Decgmber 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999
(In Thousands, Except Share Data)

Accumulated
Other
Compre-

Retained hensive

Earnings ' Income (‘ Loss')

Common
Stock

Capital
Surplus

Balance, December 31, 1998 $
.- Comprehensive income:
~ Net income — 1999 o -- --
Other comprehensive income net of tax:

8895 $ 1293 '$ 1249 $ = 179

3,566 --
Unrealized holding losses arising during the

period (net of tax, $1,100) ‘ -- -- -- -
Reclassification adjustment (net of tax, $4) -- -- L -

Other comprehensive income (net of tax, $1,104)
Total comprehensive income
Cash dividends — 1999 ($0.68 per share)
Balance; December 31, 1999
Comprehensive income:’
Net income — 2000
Other comprehensive income net of tax:
Unrealized holding gains arising during the
period (net of tax, $1,150) ‘
Reclassification adjustment (net of tax, $69)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax, $1,219)
Total comprehensive income
Cash dividends — 2000 ($0.84 per share)
Purchase of common stock (57,785 shares)
Issuance of common stock (18,038 shares)
Balance, December 31, 2000
Comprehensive income:
Net income - 2001
Other comprehensive income net of tax:
~ Unrealized holding losses arising during the
period (net of tax, $204)
. Reclassification adjustment (net of tax, $131)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax, $335)
Total comprehensive income
Cash dividends — 2001 ($1.00 per share)
Purchase of common stock (7,131 shares)
. Issuance of common stock (20,142 shares)
Balancé, December 31,2001

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2,144)
(1.210) --
14,852 §  (1,965)

$ 8895 $§ 1,293 S

4228 1 --

2,368

(289)
90 301 L
$ 869 $ 55 $ 17,616 $ 403

5,217 --

(651)
(1,749) .-
(36) (178) -- .-
101 363
$ 8761 § 741

$ 21084 3§ (248)

’(1,464) o I
(,038). 1 ee e

Compre-
hensive
Income _ __Total

$ 22,863
$ 3,566 3,566
(2,153) --
o 9 .
$ (2144) (2,149
$ 1422 .-
(1.210)
" $ 23,075
$ 4,228 4,228
2,233 --
135 --
$ 2,368 2,368
$ 6596 --
(1,464)
(1,327)
391
$ 27,271
$ 5,217 5,217
(398) --
253 --
$ . (651) (651)
$ 4.566 --
(1,749)
(214)
464
§ 30338




INDEPENDENT COMMUNITY BANKSHARES, INC.

Cbnso)idéted Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

(In Thousands)

. Cash Flows from Operating Activities
~ Net income - ‘ ‘
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization
Provision for loan losses
Net (gain) loss on securities available for sale
Net (gain) loss on sale of assets
Net loss on the sale of other real estate ‘
Discount accretion and premium amortization
on securities, net
Deferred income tax (benefit)
Origination of loans held for sale
Proceeds from sales of loans held for sale
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) in other assets
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Proceeds from maturity, principal paydowns
and calls of investment securities-
Proceeds from maturity, principal paydowns:. - -
~ and calls of securities available for sale
Proceeds from sale of securities .
available for sale
Purchase of securities available for sale
Proceeds from sale of equipment
Purchases of bank premises and equipment
Net (increase) in loans
Proceeds from the sale of other real estate
Net cash (used in) investing activities -

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. -

2001 2000 1999
5217 8 4228 $ 3,566
692 645 605
96 64 60
300 400 420
(384) 204 13
2 ) (5
- - 5
(110) (20 64
(95 (180) (186)
(93229)  (34,837) (30,744)
88,708 33,938 34,184
917y (1,058) (1,372)
21 846 (a0
491§ 4223 § 6,539
2032 § 772 S 1,905 ' -
9,070 4,527 5,300
24,050 16,581 1,988
(78,415) (32,316) (22,473)
34 7 131 -
(2,448) (709 - (1,164)
(18,846) (34,412) (21,942)
- .. 195
(64,523) $ (36,060)

_(45,550) $




INDEPENDENT COMMUNITY BANKSHARES, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Continued) _
Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999
(In Thousands)
2001 2000 1999
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net increase in noninterest-bearing and interest-
bearing demand deposits and savings accounts $ 33,514 $ 11,147 8§ 24,798
Net increase in certificates of deposit 13,577 9,656 6,359
Increase (decrease) in securities sold under agreements N
to repurchase (2,310) 3,510 8,282
Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advances 87,600 35,900 --
Proceeds from long-term debt -- 1,300 --
Proceeds from trust preferred capital notes 10,000 - --
Payments on Federal Home Loan Bank advances (80,600) -- (1,000)
Payments on long-term debt (495) (20,900) --
Purchase of common stock ’ (214) (1,327) --
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock 464 34 --
Cash dividends paid (1,676) (1,402) (1,175)
Net cash provided by financing activities $ 59.860 $ 37918 § 37.264
Increase (decrease) in cash and and cash equivalents $ 4,172) $ (3,409) $ 7,743
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Ending $ 12975 § 17,147 § 20,556
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information
Cash payments for:
Interest paid to depositors $ 6,294 $ 5833 §$ 5,073
Interest paid on short-term obligations : 479 445 10
Interest paid on long-term debt 1.073 500 - 276
$ 7.846 § 6778 § 5,359
Income taxes $ 2375 $ 1,557 § 1,287
Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Transactions
Issuance of common stock for contingent payment under
terms of acquisition of subsidiary $ -- % 357 $ --
Unrealized (loss) gain on securities available for sale $ (986) $ 3,587 $ (3.248)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




Note 1.

INDEPENDENT COMMUNITY BANKSHARES, INC.

Notes to Consolidated .'Financial Statements

Nature of Banking Activities and Significant Accounting Policies

: Independent~~Community~ Bankshares’ banking subsidiary, The Middleburg Bank, grants

commercial, financial, agricultural, residential and consumer loans to customers principally in. -
Loudoun County and Fauquier County, Virginia. The loan portfolio is well diversified and
generally is collateralized by assets of the customers. The loans are expected to be repaid from
cash flow or proceeds from the sale of selected assets of the borrowers. The Tredegar Trust
Company, a non-banking subsidiary, offers a comprehensive range of fiduciary and investment
management services to.individuals and businesses.

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to accounting princ'iples generally
accepted in the United States of America and to accepted practice within the banking industry.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of Independent Community Bankshares, Inc. and its
wholly-owned -subsidiaries, The Middleburg Bank, The Tredegar Trust Company,
Middleburg Bank Service Corporation and ICBI Capital Trust I, include the accounts of all
companies. All material intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in -
consolidation.

Securities
Investments are accounted for as follows:
a. Securities Held to Maturity

Securities classified as held to maturity are those debt securities the Company has both
the intent and ability to hold to maturity regardless of changes in market conditions,
liquidity needs or changes in general economic conditions. These securities are carried -
at cost adjusted for amortization of premium and accretion of discount, computed by the
interest method over their contractual lives.

b. Securities Available for Sale

Securities classified as available for sale are those debt and equity securities that the
Company intends to hold for an indefinite period of time, but not necessarily to
maturity.. - Any decision to sell a security classified as available for sale would be based
on various factors, including significant movements in interest rates, changes in the
maturity mix of the Company’s assets and liabilities, liquidity needs, regulatory capital
considerations, and other similar factors. Securities available for sale are carried at fair
value. Unrealized gains or losses are reported as increases or decreases in shareholders’
equity, net of the related deferred tax effect. Realized gains or losses, determined on
the basis of the- cost of specific securities sold, are included in. earnings.




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest
method over the terms of the securities. Declines in the fair value of held to maturity
and available for sale securities below their cost that are deemed to be other than
temporary are reflected in earnings as realized losses. Gains and losses on the sale of
securities are recorded on the trade date and are determined using the specific
identification method.

Loans Held for Sale

Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the
lower of cost or estimated market value in the aggregate.

Loans

The Company’s subsidiary bank grants mortgage, commercial and consumer loans to
customers. A substantial portion of the loan portfolio is represented by mortgage loans
throughout Loudoun County and Fauquier County, Virginia. The ability of the debtors to
honor their contracts is dependent upon the real estate and general economic conditions in
this area.

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until
maturity or pay-off generally are reported at their outstanding unpaid principal balances less
the allowance for loan losses. Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance.

The accrual of interest on mortgage and commercial loans is discontinued at the time the
loan is 90 days delinquent unless the credit is well-secured and in the process of collection.
Personal loans are typically charged off no later than 180 days past due. In all cases, loans
are placed on nonaccrual or charged-off at an earlier date if collection of principal or interest
is considered doubtful.

All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on nonaccrual or charged off
is reversed against interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-
basis or cost-recovery method, until qualifying for return to accrual. Loans are returned to
accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought
current and future payments are reasonably assured. ‘

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through
a provision for loan losses charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the
allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed.
Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based
upon management’s periodic review of the collectibility of the loans in light of historical
experience, the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect
the borrower’s ability to repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing
economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective, as it requires estimates that
are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable
that the Company’s subsidiary bank will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of
principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement.
Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status,
collateral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments
when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls
generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines the significance of
payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all
of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the
delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior payment record, and the amount of the
shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on a loan by
loan basis for commercial and construction loans by either the present value of expected
future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, the loan’s obtainable market
price, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent.

Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for
impairment. Accordingly, the Company’s subsidiary bank does not separately identify
individual consumer and residential loans for impairment disclosures.

Loan Fees and Costs

Loan origination and commitment fees and direct loan costs are being recognized as
collected and incurred. The use of this method of recognition does not produce results that
are materially different from results which would have been produced if such costs and fees

were deferred and amortized as an adjustment of the loan yield over the life of the related
loan.

Bank Premises and Equipment
Bank premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation

of property and equipment is computed principally on the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives: '

Years
Buildings and improvements 31.5-39
Furniture and equipment 3-10




Notes to Consolidated Financial-Statements -

Maintenance and repairs of property and equipment are charged to operations- and:major
improvements are capitalized. Upon retirement, sale or other disposition of property and
equipment, the cost and accumulated deprec1at10n are- ellmmated from the aceounts and gain
or loss is included in operations. :

Other Real Estate

‘Real estate acquired by foreclosure is carried at the lower of cost or fair market value less an
allowance for estimated selling expenses on the future disposition of the property.

Goodwill

Goodwill is amortized using the straight-line method over 20 years. Annual amortization of
goodwill is approximately $96,000. In accordance with SFAS'No: 142, beginning January
1, 2002, goodwill will no longer be amortized but will be evaluated for impairment on an
annual basis. :

Income Taxes

‘Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined using the balance sheet method.
Under this method, the net deferred tax asset or liability is determined based on-the tax
effects of the temporary differences between the book and tax bases of the various balance
sheet assets and liabilities and gives current recognition to changes in tax rates and laws.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share represents income available to.common shareholders divided by

" the weighted-average number of common  shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
earnings per share reflects additional common shares that would have been outstanding if
dilutive potential common shares had been issued, as well as any adjustment to income that
would result from the assumed issuance. Potential common shares that may be issued by
the Company relate solely to outstanding stock -options, and are determined using the
treasury stock method.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For pufposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,

amounts due from banks, other temporary investments and federal funds sold. Generally,
federal funds are purchased and sold for one-day periods.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant
change in the near term relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses and
deferred taxes.

Advertising Costs
The Company follows the policy of chérging the costs of advertising to expense as incurred.
Comprehensive Income

Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses
be included in net income. Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as
unrealized gains and losses on available for sale securities, are reported as a separate
component of the equity section of the balance sheet, such items, along with net income are
components of comprehensive income.

Derivative Financial Instnﬁnents

As part of the Company’s asset/liability management, the Company uses interest rate swaps
to modify interest rate characteristics of various balance sheet accounts. Derivatives that are
used as part of the asset/liability management process are linked to specific assets or
liabilities and have high correlation between the contract and the underlying item being
hedged, both at inception and throughout the hedge period. Swaps are accounted for on the
“accrual” method. Under that method, the interest component associated with the contract is
recognized over the life of the contract in net interest income.

11
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Note 2. Securities

" Amortized costs and fair values of securities belng held to maturlty as of December 31 2001 and
2000 are summarized as follows: ~ :

Gross Gross-

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains (Losses) Value
2001
(In Thousands)
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions $ 5484 $ 171 $ --$§ 5655
Mortgage-backed securities 61 - -- -6l
' $§ 5545 S 171 $ -- 8§ 5716
2000
: (In Thousands)
- U.S. Treasury securities "
and obligations of U.S.
Government corpoi‘ations
and agencies $ 250 $ -~ 8 3) $ 245
Obligations of states and -
political subdivisions 6,657 146 -- 6,803
Mortgage-backed securities 93 -- -- 93

$ 7,000 $ 146§ () $ 7041
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The amortized cost and fair value of securities being held to maturity as of December 31, 2001 by
contractual maturity are shown below. Maturities may differ from contractual maturities in
mortgage-backed securities because. the mortgages underlying the securities may be called or
repaid without any penalties. Therefore, these securities are not included in the maturity categories
in the following maturity summary. ’

Amortized Fair
Cost Value
(In Thousands)
Due in one year or less , - $ 590 § 593
Due after one year through five years. ‘ 3,194 3,292
Due after five years through 10 years o 1,700 1,770
' Mortgage-backed securities S 61 61

$ 5,545 § 5,716

Amortized costs and fain values of securities available for sale as of December 31, 2001 and 2000,
are summarized as follows: «

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains (Losses) Value
2001
o (In Thousands)
U.S. Treasury securities and
obligations of U.S. Government
corporations and agencies $ 249 § 18 § -- 8 267
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions 33,338 381 (499) 33,220
Mortgage-backed securities 64,206 231 (691) 63,746
Corporate preferred 2,188 25 (28) 2,185
Other 19,201 265 (78) 19,388

$ 119,182 § 920 $ (1,296) § 118,806
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Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains (Losses) Value
2000
(In Thousands)
U.S. Treasury securities and
obligations of U.S. Government
corporations and agencies $ 3,064 $ 36 §$ (28) % 3,072
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions 27,699 550 (288) 27,961
Mortgage-backed securities 33,764 415 (136) 34,043
Corporate preferred 2,498 154 (200) 2,452

Other 6,943 106 -- 7,049
' $ 73,968 § 1,261 § (652) $ 74,577

The amortized cost and fair value of securities available for sale as of December 31, 2001, by
contractual maturity are shown below. Maturities may differ from contractual maturities in
corporate and mortgage-backed securities because the securities and mortgages underlying the
securities may be called or repaid without any penalties. Therefore, these securities are not
included in the maturity categories in the following maturity summary.

Amortized Fair
Cost Value
(In Thousands)

Due after one year through five years $ 1165 § 1,203
Due after five years through 10 years : 10,726 10,791
Due after 10 years 21,696 21,493
Mortgage-backed securities 64,206 63,746
Corporate preferred . 2,188 2,185
Other ‘ 19,201 19,388

$ 119,182 $ 118,806

Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale during 2001, 2000 and 1999 were $24,050,000,
$16,581,000, and $1,988,000, respectively. Gross gains of $533,000, $23,000, and $0 and gross
losses of $149,000, $227,000, and $13,000 were realized on those sales, respectively.

The carrying value of securities pledged to qualify for fiduciary powers, to secure public monies as

required by law and for other purposes amounted to $27,701,000 and $24,491,000 at
December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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Note 3. Loans, Net

December 31,

2001 2000
(In Thousands)
Mortgage loans on real estate:
Construction $ 24174 § 17,693
Secured by farmland ' 163 346
Secured by 1-4 family residential 89,095 ' 87,518
Other real estate loans 48,074 38,812

Loans to farmers (except secured by real estate) 632 1,307

Commercial loans ’ 22.361 21,248

Loans to individuals for personal expendltures 11,735 10,505

All other loans o 166 169

Total loans S $ 196,400 $ 177,598

Less: Allowance for loan losses 2,060 1,804

Net loans R - o $ 194340 $ 175794
Note4.  Allowance for Loan Losses
2001 2000 1999
(In Thousands)

- Balance, beginning $ 1,804 § 1,453 § 1,064
Provision charged to operating expense 300 400 420
Recoveries ' -39 47 120
Loan losses charged to the allowance (83) . (96) - - (151)

$ 2,060 3 1,804 $ 1,453

There were no loans recognized for impairment under SFAS No. 114 as of December 31, 2001
and 2000. The average recorded investment in impaired loans during 2000 and 1999 was $15,000,

and $75,000, respectively. No interest income on impaired loans was recognized in 2001, 2000
and 1999.

Nonaccrual loans excluded from impaired loan disclosure under SFAS No. 114 amounted to
$79,000 and $105,000 at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. If interest on these loans had
been accrued, such income would have approximated $700 and $14,000 for 2001 and 2000,
respectively.
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Note 5. Bank Premises and Equipment, Net

Bank premises and equipment consists of the following:

2001 2000
(In Thousands)

Land § 2022 § 1,526

Banking facilities 3,907 3,894

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5,400 4,341
Construction in progress and deposits

on equipment 1.406 576

$ 12,735 § 10,337

Less accumulated depreciation 4,666 3,988

$ 8.069 § 6,349

Depreciation expense was $692,000, $645,000, and $605,000 for the years ended December 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Note 6. Deposits

The aggregate amount of jumbo time deposits, each with a minimum denomination of $100,000,
was approximately $45,679,000 and $34,981,000 in 2001 and 2000, respectively.

At December 31, 2001, the scheduled maturities of time deposits (in thousands) are as follows:

2002 $ 75,883
2003 8,614
2004 4,074
2005 891
2006 and thereafter 2,350

$ 91812

Note 7. Borrowings

The Company has a $56,500,000 line of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta.
Advances on the line are secured by all of the Company’s first lien loans on one-to-four unit
single-family dwellings. As of December 31, 2001, the book value of these loans totaled
approximately $80,724,000. The amount of the available credit is limited to seventy-five percent
of qualifying collateral. Any borrowings in excess of the qualifying collateral require pledging of
additional assets.
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Note 8.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company’s fixed-rate long-term debt with the Federal Home Loan Bank of $20,000,000 at
December 31, 2001 matures through 2005. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, the interest rates
ranged from 4.73 percent to 6.16 percent and from 5.85 percent to 6.87 percent, respectively. At
December 31, 2001 and 2000, the weighted average interest rates were 5.73 percent and
6.26 percent, respectively.

At December 31, 2001, the Company had floating-rate long-term debt with other institutions
totaling $805,000 and maturing on March 31, 2003. The floating rate is based on the 30-day
LIBOR plus 115 basis points. The interest rate ranged from 3.19% to 6.72% during 2001.

The contractual maturities of the Company’s long-term debt are as follows:

2001
(In Thousands)
Due in 2002 ‘ $ 260
Due in 2003 545
Due in 2004 5,000
Due in 2005 15,000
$ 20.805

The Company’s short-term borrowings with the Federal Home Loan Bank totaled $7,000,000 at
December 31, 2001. The interest rate on the outstanding principal was 2.18% at December 31,
2001.

The Company has an additional $5,300,000 in lines of credit available from other institutions at
December 31, 2001.

Stock Option Plan

The Company sponsors a stock option plan, which provides for granting of both incentive and
nonqualified stock options. As permitted under generally accepted accounting principles, grants
under the plan are accounted for following the provisions of APB Opinion No. 25 and its related
interpretations. ~ All options were granted at fair value at date of grant. Accordingly, no
compensation cost has been recognized for grants made to date. In determining the pro forma
amounts below, the value of each grant is estimated at the grant date using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model, with the following weighted-average assumptions for grants in 2000 and
1999: dividend rate of .20% and .22%; risk-free interest rates of 5.35% and 6.50%; expected lives
of 10 years; and expected price volatility of 17.96% and 15.97%. Options granted in 1999 are
included with the 2000 calculations to correspond with shareholder approval of the plan in 2000.
Had compensation cost for the plan been determined consistent with SFAS No. 123, “Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation,” the Company’s net income and earnings per share would have
been reduced to the following pro forma amounts:
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2001 © _2000 ° _ 1999
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Net Income: AsReported = § 5217 § 4228 $§ 3,566
" ProForma $ 4994 8§ 3911 $§ 3,189

Basic EPS: As Reported $ 299 8§ 243  § 2.00
Pro Forma $ 2.86 $ 2.25 $ 1.79

Diluted EPS: AsRepored § 293 °$ 241 $ 199
$  1.78

Pro Forma $ 280

)

2.23

Options outstanding at December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 are summarized as follows:

2001 2000 .. e 1999
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Avérage : Average Average
Exercise Exercise ) "~ Exercise
Shares - Price Shares Price Shares _ Price
QOutstanding at
beginning of year 152,825 § 2115 121,825 § 21.13 86,000 § 1946
Granted -- -- 31,000 21.66 37,825 24.70
Exercised (20,142) 20.29 -- -- -- --
Forfeited _(27.658) 23.28 - == -- __(2.000) 17.00
Outstanding at end
of year _105025 § 20.76 152,825 § 2115 _121.825 § 21.13
Options exercisable
at year end 94,425 $ 2062 116,749 $ 2069 82,681 5 19.69
Weighted average
fair value of options
granted during the
year $ -- $ 9.20 $ 11.53
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As of December 31, 2001, options outstanding and exercisable are summarized as follows:

Weighted
Remaining
Exercise Options ~ Contractual Options
Prices Outstanding - Life Exercisable
$ 17.00 42,000 59 42,000
23.50 18,000 7.0 18,000
24.50 ‘ 5,025 7.7 5,025 -
24.75 20,000 8.0 17,640
21.25 20,000 90 11,760
105,025 94,425

Note 9. Employee Benefit Plans
The Company has a noncontributory, defined béneﬁt pénsion plan covering substantially all full-

time employees. The Company funds pension costs in accordance with the funding provisions of
the Employee Retirement Income Security Act. Information about the plan follows:
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2001 2000 1999
" (In Thousands)
Change in Benefit Obligation . ‘
Benefit obligation, beginning of year % 1,862 $§ 2002 $ 1,766
Service cost ‘ o v ) 274 215 180
Interest cost” ' ( 140 150 132
Plan amendments -- (350) --
Actuarial loss (gain) 42 (33) (62)
Benefits paid : (19 (122) 14
Benefit obligation, end of year $§ 2299 § 182 § 2,002
Change in Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year $ 2049 § 1,751 $ 1,385
Actual return on plan assets (289) 269 191
Employer contributions 151 151 189
Benefits paid 19 (122) a4
Fair value of plan assets, ending $§ 182 § 20490 8§ 1751
Funded status $ (336) $ 183 $ (251)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss 956 463 648
Unrecognized net obligation at transition (28) (32) (36)
Unrecognized prior service cost (199) (200) 167
Prepaid benefit cost included in other assets $ 393 §$ 414 § 528
Components of Net Periodic
Benefit Cost
Service cost $ 274§ 215 ¢ 180
Interest cost 140 150 132
. Expected return on plan assets (174) (140) (111)
“"Amortization of prior service cost (1 17 17
Amortization of net obligation : o
at transition . T ) I ()] (4)
Recognized net actuarial loss 14 22 32
Net periodic benefit cost $ 249 $ 260 $ 246
Weighted-Average Assumptions
as.of December 31 ‘
Discount rate 7.50%  7.50% 7.50%
Expected return on plan assets 9.00% 9.00% - 9.00%
Rate of compensation increase 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
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Note 10.

2001 2000
- (In Thousands)
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for loan losses $ 585 §$ 498
Deferred compénsatio'n : 52 42
. Loss on capital assets » -- 42
Other 13 --
© . Securities available for sale 1 128 -

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A deferred compensation plan was adopted for the President and Chief Executive Officer.
Benefits are to be paid in monthly installments for 15 years following retirement or death. The
agreement provides that if employment is terminated for reasons other than death or disability prior
to age 65, the amount of benefits would be reduced. The deferred compensation expense for 2001,
2000 and 1999, based on the present value of the retirement benefits, was $21,794, $20,368 and
$19,036. The plan is unfunded. However, life insurance has been acquired on the life of the
employees in amounts sufficient to discharge the obligations. - -

Income Taxes

Net deferred tax ‘assets (liabilities) consist of the following components as of December 31, 2001
and 2000:"

3 778 $ 582

Deferred tax liabilities: = . ‘
Property and equipment $ 243§ 258

Prepaid pension costs ‘ ' L 126 . 138
Securities available for sale ‘ - - . 207

$ 369 $ 603

$ 409 § (21

The provision for income taxes charged to operations for the years ended December 31, 2001,
2000 and 1999 consists of the following: ’

2001 2000 1999
(In Thousands)
Current tax expense ' $ 1,850 $ 1,630 § 1283
» Deferred tax (benefit) 95 (180) (186)

b 1,755 § 1,450 $ 1,097
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Note 12.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The income tax provision differs from the amount of income tax determined by applying the U.S.
federal income tax rate to pretax income for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999,
due to the following:

2001 2000 1999
(In Thousands)
Computed "expected” tax expense $ 2,370 $ 1,931 § 1,585
(Decrease) in income taxes -
resulting from: v
Tax-exempt interest income , ' (578) (466) (486)

Other, net : 37D (15) (2)
) ) $ 1,755 § 1,450 $ 1,097

Related Party Transactions

The Company’s subsidiary bank has had, and may be expected to have in the future, banking
transactions in the ordinary course of business with directors, principal officers, their immediate
families and affiliated companies in which they are principal stockholders (commonly referred to
as related parties), on the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at
the time for comparable transactions with others. These persons and firms were indebted to the
subsidiary bank for loans totaling $2,550,000 and $3,027,000 at December 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. During 2001, total principal additions were $784,000 and total principal payments
were $1,261,000.

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments =

In the normal course of business, there are outstanding various commitments and contingent
liabilities, which are not reflected in the accompanying financial statements. The Company does
not anticipate any material loss as a result of these transactions.

See Note 15 with respeét to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk.

The Company must maintain a reserve against its deposits in accordance with Regulation D of the
Federal Reserve Act. For the final weekly reporting period in the years ended December 31, 2001

and 2000, the aggregate amount of daily average required reserves for each year was
approximately $25,000.
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Note 14.

Note 15.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Earnings Per Share

The following shows the weighted average number of shares used in computing earnings per share
and the effect on weighted average number of shares of diluted potential common stock. Potential
dilutive common stock had no effect on income available to common stockholders.

2001 » 2000 1999
Per Per Per
Share Share Share
Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount

Basic EPS 1,746,000 $ 299 1,741,000 $ 243 1,779000 $ _ .2.00

Effect of dilutive

securities:
Stock options 37,000 11,000 16.000
Diluted EPS 1,783,000 $ 293 1,752,000 $ 2.41 1795000 $ 1.99

In 2000, stock options representing 69,825 shares were not included in the calculation of earnings
per share because they would have been antidilutive. No options were excluded from the
computation of diluted earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 1999.

Retained Earnings |

Transfers of funds from the banking subsidiary to the Parent Company in the form of loans,
advances and cash dividends are restricted by federal and state regulatory authorities. As of
December 31, 2001, the aggregate amount of unrestricted funds which could be transferred from
the Company’s sub51d1anes to the Parent Company, without prlor regulatory approval totaled
$8,203,000 or 27.0% of the total consolidated net assets.

Financial Instruments With Off-Balance-Sheet Risk and Credit Risk

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of
business to meet the financing needs of its customers and to reduce its own exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit,
standby letters of credit and interest rate swaps. Those instruments involve, to varying degrees,
elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the balance sheet.
The contract or notional amounts of those instruments reflect the extent of involvement the
Company has in particular classes of financial instruments.

The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the
financial instrument for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented
by the contractual amount of those instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in
making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments.

23




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A summary of the contract amount of the Company’s exposure to off-balance-sheet risk as of
December 31, 2001 and 2000, is as follows:

2001 2000
(In Thousands)
Financial instruments whose contract
amounts represent credit risk:
Commitments to extend credit $ 34244 § 26,611
Standby letters of credit 2,343 2,058

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation
of any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or
other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are
expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily
represent future cash requirements. The Company evaluates each customer’s credit worthiness on
a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Company
upon extension of credit, is based on management’s credit evaluation of the counterparty.
Collateral held varies but may include accounts receivable, inventory, property and equipment, and
income-producing commercial properties.

Unfunded commitments under lines of credit are commitments for possible future extensions of
credit to existing customers. Those lines of credit may not be drawn upon to the total extent to
which the Company is committed.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the
performance of a customer to a third party. Those guarantees are primarily issued to support
public and private borrowing arrangements, including commercial paper, bond financing, and
similar transactions. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as
that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. The Company holds real estate as collateral
supporting those commitments for which collateral is deemed necessary. The extent of collateral
held for those commitments at December 31, 2001 averages 62.5 percent.

The Company has utilized derivative instruments in the form of interest rate swaps during the
years 2001 and 2000. Interest rate swaps are contracts in which a series of interest flows in a
single currency are exchanged over a prescribed period. These transactions involve both credit
and market risk. The notional amounts are amounts on which calculations and payments are
based. The notional amounts are not exchanged and do not represent direct credit exposure.

- Direct credit exposure is limited to the net difference between the calculated amounts to be
received and paid, if any.
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During May 2000, the Company entered into two interest rate swap agreements to assume variable
market-indexed interest payments in exchange for fixed-rate interest payments (interest rate
swaps). The notional principal amount of interest rate swaps outstanding was $8,525,000 at
December 31, 2001 and 2000. The original term to maturity was 24 months. The weighted-
average fixed payment rate was 7.00% at December 31, 2001 and 2000. Variable interest
payments received are based on three-month LIBOR. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, the
weighted average rate of variable market-indexed interest payment obligations to the Company
was 1.67% and 6.41%, respectively. The effect of these agreements was to transform fixed rate
liabilities to variable rate liabilities. The net income from these agreements was $250,848 and
$29,941 for the twelve-month periods ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, which was charged to
income as it accrued.

At December 31, 2001 and 2000, interest rate swaps used for other-than-trading purposes modlfy
the interest rate exposure in the Company’s interest-bearing deposits.

The Company has approximately $6,785,000 in deposits in financial institutions in excess of
amounts insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) at December 31, 2001.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments and Interest Rate Risk

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate that value:

Cash and Short-Term Investments
For those short-term instruments, the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value.
Securities

For securities held for investment purposes, fair values are based on quoted market prices or
dealer quotes. :

Loans Held for Sale

Fair values of loans held for sale are based on commitments on hand from investors or
prevailing market prices.

Loans

For variable-rate loans that reprice frequently and with no significant change in credit risk, fair
values are based on carrying values. The fair values for other loans were estimated using
discounted cash flow analyses, using interest rates currently being offered.

Accrued Interest

The carrying amounts of accrued interest approximate fair values.
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Deposits and Borrowings

The fair value of demand deposits, savings accounts, and certain money market deposits is the

“amount payable on demand at the reporting date. For all other deposits and borrowings, the fair
value is determined using the discounted cash flow method. The discount rate was equal to the
rate currently offered on similar products. ‘ '

Off-Balance-Sheet Financial Instruments

The fair value of commitments to extend credit is. estimated using the fees currently charged to

enter into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the

present credit worthiness of the counterparties. For fixed-rate- loan commitments, fair value also

" considers the difference between current levels of interest rates and the committed rates. The

- fair value of standby letters of credit is based on fees currently charged for similar agreements or
on the estimated cost to terminate them or otherwise settle the obligations with the
counterparties at the reporting date. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, the carrying amounts of
loan commitments and standby letters of credit approximated fair values.

Fair values for off-balance-sheet derivative financial instruments, for other-than-trading
- purposes, are based upon quoted market. prices. -

:.The estimated fair values, and related carrying amounts, of the Company’s financial instruments
are as follows: - ,

2001 __2000
" Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value  _Amount Value
(In Thousands)
Financial assets:
Cash and short-term investments $ 12975 $ 12975 $ 17,147 $ 17,147
Securities . 124,351 124,522 81,577 81,718
Loans held for sale 6,652 6,668 2,131 2,131
Loans ' 194,340 - 203,720 - 175,794 174,522
" Accrued interest receivable ST 1984 7 1,984 1,736 1,736
Findncial liabilities:
Deposits S $ 271,731 $ 272,864 '$ 224,640 $ 224,938
Securities sold under agreements ) ’
to repurchase ' 12,011 12,011 14,321 14,321
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 7000 7,000
Long-term debt 20,805 23,136 21,300 20,999
Trust preferred capital notes 10,000 10,000 -- --
Accrued interest payable 819 819 853 853
Off-balance-sheet derivative financial
instruments:
* Other-than-trading assets:
Interest rate swaps $ -- $ 225§ -~ $ 174
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The Company assumes interest rate risk (the risk that general interest rate levels will change) as
a result of its normal operations. As a result, the fair values of the Company’s financial
instruments will change when interest rate levels change and that change may be either
favorable or unfavorable to the Company. Management attempts to match maturities of assets
and liabilities to the extent believed necessary to minimize interest rate risk. However,
borrowers with fixed rate obligations are less likely to prepay in a rising rate environment and
more likely to prepay in a falling rate environment. Conversely, depositors who are receiving
fixed rates are more likely to withdraw funds before maturity in a rising rate environment and
less likely to do so in a falling rate environment. Management monitors rates and maturities of
assets and liabilities and attempts to minimize interest rate risk by adjusting terms of new loans
and deposits and by investing in securities with terms that mitigate the Company’s overall
interest rate risk. :

Capital Requirements

The Company and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by
the federal banking agencies. Failure to meét minimum capital requirements can initiate certain
mandatory - possibly additional discretionary - actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have
a direct material effect on the Company’s and Bank’s financial statements. Under capital
adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Company and
the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the
Company’s and the Bank’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated
under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and classification are also subject to
qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors.
Prompt corrective action provisions are not applicable to bank holding companies.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company
and the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and
Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets, and of Tier 1 capital to average assets. Management
believes, as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, that the Company and the Bank meet all capital
adequacy requirements to which they are subject.

As of December 31, 2001, the most recent notification from the Federal Reserve Bank categorized
the Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be
categorized as well capitalized, an institution must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-
based, and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the table. There are no conditions or events since
that notification that management believes have changed the institution’s category.
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The Company’s and the Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios are also presented in the table.

Minimum
, To Be Well
Minimum . Capitalized Under
Capital . .. Prompt Corrective
Actual , Requirement - - Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
v ‘ ‘ (In Thousands)
As of December 31, 2001:
Total Capital (to Risk
Weighted Assets):
Consolidated - _ $§ 41,374 17.3% . § . 19,088 - . 8.0% . N/A
The Middleburg Bank $ 34969 = 150% . § 18,675 80% - § 23344 10.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk
Weighted Assets):
Consolidated § 39,084 16.4% $ 9,544 4.0% : N/A
The Middleburg Bank $ 32,909 14.1% $ 9,338 4.0% § 14,007 6.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to
Average Assets):
Consolidated $ 39,084 125%  § 12,542 4.0% : N/A
The Middleburg Bank § 32,909 10.8% $ 12,218 40% - $ 15273 5.0%
As of December 31, 2000:
Total Capital (to Risk
Weighted Assets):
Consolidated § 27319 - 13.6% $ 16,088 8.0% N/A
The Middieburg Bank $ 22,889 11.6% $ 15735 8.0% § 19,669 10.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk ‘
Weighted Assets): :
Consolidated $ 25,515 12.7% $ 8,044 4.0% N/A
The Middleburg Bank $ 21,085 10.7% $ 7,868 4.0% § 11,802 6.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to ' '
Average Assets):
Consolidated § 25,515 9.7% $ 10,487 4.0% N/A
The Middleburg Bank § 21,085 8.3% $ 10,190 4.0% $ 12,738 5.0%

Note 18. Proposed Acquisiti_on

On August 9, 1999, the Company purchased one percent of the issued and outstanding capital
stock of Gilkison Patterson Investment Advisors, Inc. (“GPIA™), an investment advisory firm
based in Alexandria, Virginia. In addition, the Company acquired the right to purchase all of the
remaining authorized, issued and outstanding shares of GPIA capital stock on or after July 1,
2001. This option was extended through June 30, 2002. The consideration for the shares and the
merger option consisted of $2.26 million in cash and other non-stock consideration. Upon
exercise of the merger option, the Company will purchase all the remaining issued and outstanding
shares of GPIA capital stock for an additional $3.8 million in cash and shares of the Company’s

common stock.
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Trust Preferred Capital Notes

On November 14, 2001, ICBI Capital Trust I, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was
formed for the purpose of issuing redeemable Capital Securities. On November 28, 2001,
$10 million of trust preferred securities were issued through a pooled underwriting totaling
approximately $750 million. The. securities have a LIBOR-indexed floating rate of interest. The

“interest rate as of December 31, 2001 was 5.85%. The securities have a mandatory redemption

date of December 8, 2031, and are subject to varying call provisions beginning December 8, 2006.
The principal asset of the Trust is $10 million of the Company’s junior subordlnated debt
securities with the like maturities and like interest rates to the Capital Securities.

The Trust Preferred Securities may be included in Tier 1 capital for regulatory capital adequacy
determination purposes up to 25% of Tier 1 capital after its inclusion. The portion of the Trust
Preferred not considered as Tier 1 capital may be included in Tier 2 capital. ‘

The obligations of the Company with respect to the issuance of the Capital Securities constitute a

full and unconditional guarantee by the Company of the Trust’s obligations with respect to the
Capltal Securities. ‘

Subject to certain exceptions and limitations, the Company may elect from time to time to defer
interest payments on the junior subordinated debt securities, which would result in a deferral of
distribution payments on the related Capital Securities.
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Note 20. Condensed Financial Information - Parent Corporation Only

INDEPENDENT COMMUNITY BANKSHARES, INC.
(Parent Corporation Only)

Balance Sheets
December 31, 2001 and 2000

~ Assets 2001 2000
{(In Thousands) -

Cash on deposit with subsidiary bank $8 35 8 53
Money market fund 1,409 169
Securities available for sale 2,273 2,452

Investment in subsidiaries, at cost, plus :
equity in undistributed net income 33,881 22,978
Note receivable 1,000 1,000
Goodwill 1,272 1,353
Other assets ‘ . 1,770 1.500
Total assets $ 41640 $ 29505

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

Liabilities
. Note payable to subsidiary $ -- % 500
-Long-term debt 805 1,300
Trust preferred capital notes 10,000 --
Other liabilities o 497 434

Total liabilities $ 11,302 $ 2,234

Shareholders' Equity

Common stock $ 8,761 § 8,696
Capital surplus ' ' 741 : 556
Retained earnings 21,084 17,616
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (248) 403
Total shareholders' equity - $ 30338 § 27271
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 41640 $ 29,505
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(Parent Corporation Only)

Statements of Income

INDEPENDENT COMMUNITY BANKSHARES, INC.

Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

Income
Dividends from subsidiaries
Interest and dividends from investments
Interest on money market
Interest from loan to GPIA
Management fees from GPIA
Gains (losses) on securities available
for sale, net
Total income .

Expenses
Salaries and employee benefits
Amortization
Legal and professional fees
Printing and supplies
Directors fees
Interest expense on loan from subsidiary
Interest expense other
Other
Total expenses

Income before allocated tax benefits and
undistributed income of subsidiaries

Income tax (benefit)

Income before equity in undistributed
income of subsidiaries

Equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries

Net income

31

2001 2000 1999
(In Thousands)

1,795 $ 1,500 $ 1,865
169 224 178
18 6 48
74 80 32
78 77 40
119 (5) - ()]
2253 S 1,882 $ 2158
161 $ 123§ 132
96 64 60
63 . 65 )
1 9 42
50 34 34
37 40 17
114 76 ..
145 156 _ .. 27
667 $ 567 S 354
1,58 $ 1315 $ 1,804
(49) (34) 0)
1,635 $ 1,349 § 1,824
3,582 2,879 1,742
5217 § 4228 $ 3,566




INDEPENDENT COMMUNITY BANKSHARES, INC.
(Parent Corporation Only)

Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

2001 2000 1999
(In Thousands) '
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income $ 5217 § 4,228 § 3,566
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Amortization 96 64 60
Undistributed earnings of subsidiaries (3,582) (2,879) (1,742)
(Gain) loss on sale of securities available for sale (119) 5 5
(Increase) in other assets (300) (19) (1,433)
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities (19 92 548
Net cash provided by operating activities h) 1,302 $ 1491 § 1,004
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of securities available for sale 3 (162) § -- 8 (399)
Proceeds from sale of securities available for sale 503 100 201
Investment in subsidiary bank (8,000) -- --
Increase in note receivable - - - - (1,000)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 3 (7.659) $ 100 $ (1,198)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of trust preferred capital notes $ 10,000 $ -- $ --
Proceeds from long-term debt -- 1,300 --
Payments on long-term debt (495) -- --
Payment of note payable to subsidiary (500) -- --
Purchase of common stock (214) (1,327) --
Net proceeds from sale of common stock 464 34 --
Cash dividends paid (1,676) (1.402) (1,175)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities $ 7.579 § (1395 $ (1,175
Increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents $ 1,222 § 196 $ (1,369)
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Beginning 222 26 1.395
Ending $ 1444 § 222 § 26

Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Transactions,
issuance of common stock for contingent payment under
terms of acquisition of subsidiary $ -- § 357§ - -
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